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INTRODUCTION

The Financial Statements of Crown Corporations, Boards and Authorities are a reproduction of the
available audited financial statements of various Government organizations as approved by the applicable
boards of these organizations. This report is produced alphabetically in two books; A to M and N to Z.
The fiscal years noted in the table of contents are based on the fiscal year end of the organization.

Information on the financial position and results of operations of the Province for the 2009-10 fiscal year
may be found in the following financial reports:

Public Accounts Volume I — Consolidated Summary Financial Statements

This volume presents the summary financial statements which consolidate the financial statements
of the Consolidated Revenue fund with the financial statements of various Crown Corporations,
Boards and Authorities, as approved by Treasury Board, which are controlled by the Government
of Newfoundland and Labrador.

Public Accounts Volume II — Consolidated Revenue Fund Financial Statements

This Volume presents the financial position of the Consolidated Revenue Fund and the results of
its activities on an accrual basis.

Report on the Program Expenditures and Revenues of the Consolidated Revenue Fund
This report presents the actual budgetary contribution (requirement) of the Consolidated Revenue
Fund along with details on the actual revenues and expenditures, by program, using the modified

cash basis of accounting.

The Financial Statements of Crown Corporations, Boards and Agencies are also available on the
Government’s website at: http:/www.fin.gov.nl.ca/fin/public_accounts/index html
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The financial statements of the following agencies were not received in time for the inclusion in
this report:

Dr. H. Bliss Murphy Cancer Care Foundation (2008 & 2009)

Health Care Foundation of St. John’s Inc. (2010)

House of Assembly (2009)

Janeway Children’s Hospital Foundation (2010)

Labrador School Board Trust Fund (2010)

Newfoundland and Labrador Arts Council (2010)

Newfoundland and Labrador Farm Products (2006, 2007, 2008 & 2009)
Newfoundland and Labrador Film Development Corporation (2010)
Newfoundland Government Fund (2004, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 & 2009)
Newfoundland and Labrador Government Sinking Fund (2010)
Newfoundland and Labrador Industrial Development Corporation (2010)
Newfoundland and Labrador Legal Aid Commission (2008 & 2009)
Newfoundland and Labrador Municipal Financing Corporation (2010)
Newfoundland and Labrador Sports Centre Inc. (2010)

Office of the High Sheriff of Newfoundland and Labrador (2010)
Private Training Corporation Train Qut Fund (2006)

Public Health Laboratory (2010)

The Burin Peninsula Health Care Foundation Inc. (2008 & 2009)

The Rooms Corporation of Newfoundland and Labrador (2010)
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The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Nalcor Energy, and all information in the Business and
Financial Report, are the responsibility of Management and have been approved by the Board of Directors.

The Consalidated Financial Statements have been prepared by Management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles, applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year. The
preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on Management's
judgement, particuladly when transactions affecling the current accounting perod cannot be finalized with
certainty until future periods. The financial statements have been properly prepared within reasonable limits
of materiality and in light of information available up to March 9, 2010. Financial information presented
elsewhere in the Business and Financial Report is consistent with that in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that assels are
safequarded and that refiable financial information is available on a timely basis. The system includes formal
policies and procedures and an organizationat structure that provides for the appropriate delegation of authority
and segregation of responsibilities. An internal audit depariment independently evaluates the effectiveness of
these internal controls on an angoing basis, and ceports its findings to Management and to the Audit Committee
ot the Board of Direclors.

The responsibility of the external auditor, Deloitle & Touche LLP is fo express an independent, professional
opinion on whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are fairly presented in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principtes. The Auditors” Reporl outlines the scope of their examination and

their opinian.

The Beard of Directors, through its Audit Committee, is respansible tor ensuring that Management fulfils its
responsibility for tinancial reporting and internal controls. The Audit Commiltee meets reqularly with
Management, the internal zuditors and the external auditors to satisfy itself that each group has property
dischaiged its respective fesponsibility and fo review the Consolidated Financial Statements before
recommending approval by the Board of Direclors. The internal and external auditors have full and free access
to the Audit Committee, with and without the presence of Management.

Ed Martin Derrick Sturge
President and Chief txecutive Otficer Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
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To the Lieutenant-Governor in Council
Province of Newfoundiand and Labrador

we have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Nalcor Energy {the Company) as at December 31, 2009,
and the consolidated statements of income and retained eamnings and comprehensive income and cash flows
for the year then ended. These financial stalements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

we conducted our-audit in accordance with Canadian generaily accepted audiling standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial slatements are
free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the fingncial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principies used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation,

In our opinion, these consolidated linancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as al December 33, 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. As required by The
Energy Corporation Acl, we repart that, in our opinion, these principles have been applied on a basis consistent

with thal of the preceding year.

Deleite 7 Touche P

Chartered Accountants
St John's, NL

Canada

March 9, 2010
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As at December 31 (millivns of dellars)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Shert-term investrents
Accounts recejvable
Current portion of regulatory assets (Note 6)
Fue! and supplies

Prepaid expenses

Property, plant and equipment (Note 4)
Petroleum and natural gas properties (Note S)
Regulatory assets (Note 6)

Other long-term assets (Note 7)

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 9)
Current portion af regulatory liabilities (Note &)
Deferred credits

Pramissory notes

Long-term debt (Notes 9 and1%)
Reaulatory liabilities (Note &)
Other long-term kablities (Note 10)
Employee future benefits (Note 13

SHAREMOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Note 12)
Cantributed capital {Note 12)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (Notes 14 and 15)

Retained eamings

Commiiments and contingencies (Note 19)

Subsequent events (Note 24)

See accompanying nates
On Behalf of the Baard

Xq\\ 8 ¥ i

John Ottenheimer

Director

{1 .gw’-

i
Gerald shortall

Director
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2008

14.0
49.2
88.9

a8
58.5
33
219.7
15017
193.8
69.3
2462
2.630.7

124.4
375
89.8

3

254.8
L4.6
328
sS4
54.4
1,488.7

ra.5
3335
456.0
22.0
§64.0
£86.0
1132.0

2,630.7

2008
(Note 1)

49,8
24.6
77.2
50
S2.7
1.6
210.9
1.863.4
jira
746
2.0
2.475.0

5.1

S
223
05
163.0
2800
11787
315
1.7
516
1,540.5

122,5
191.5
314.0
1G.5
6C4.0
6205
9345

2,475.0



Year ended December 31 (millions of doliors)

Revente
Energy sates (Notes 2 and 21)
Other

Expenses
Operations and administration
Fuels
interest (Note 16}
amortization
Power purchased

write-down of Investment

Net income

Retainec! earnings, beginning of year

Retained earnings, end of year

See accomponying noles

7 e sy o g, 35 il sasy B o 7 B v, B g 2o o v Fy
COonEoidaied Statement of

Year ended December 31 (millions of dollars)

Net income

Other comprehensive income
Change in fair value of sinking fund and reserve fund investrnents (Note 14)
Unrealized gain on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges (Npte 14)

Comprehensive income

See occompanying notes

2009

561.6
no
572.6

1219
155.2
B3.5
54.9
471

512.6
60.0

§04.0
664.0

2008

60,0

w7

6.2
65.5

2008
(Note 1)

563.3
7.0
570.3

148.2
64,8
78.2
53.2
410
2.7
488.1
82.2

521.8
604.0

2008
(Note 1)
82.2

(3.0)

78.2



Statems

A A AT

vear ended Oecember 31 (millians of deollors)

Cash provided by {used in)
Operating activities
Nef income
Adjustments for items not involving cash
Amaortization
Accretion of long-term debt
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment
Unrealfized gain on derivative Instruments

Wwrite-down of investments

s

Changes in non-cash operating working capital batances (Note 173

FInancing activities
(Decrease) increase in promisson notes
Repayment of long-term debt
Contributed capital
tssuie of common shares
Increase in deferred credits

Increase in other liabilities

Investing activities
additlons 1o property. plant and equlpment
Additions to oll and gas properties
Increase in other long-term assets

Increase in short-term investments

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net (decrease) Increase in cash
Cash pasition, beginning of year
Cash position, end of gear

Cash position is represented by
Banlk indebtedness

Cash equivalents

Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information
Income taxes paid
Interest income received

interest paid

Sae gerompanying netes
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'5,‘ b .ﬁssé {(5
2009 2008
(Note 1)
60.0 822
54.9 53.2
0.4 05
1.8 25
(0.8) E
- 27
h6.3 1411
96,2 6.1
2t2.5 1772.2
(63.0) 156.0
0.9 (207.5)
142.0 77.5
- 100.0
2.6 Qs
34 0.6
(5.9 1271
{96.4) (83.4)
8177 he.n
[£18)] (35.0)
(24.6) 3.0
1.4 0.7
(232.4) (252.9)
(35.8) 1.4
49.8 (1.8)
4.0 49.8
(3.0} (5.0
17.0 54.9
14.0 49,8
0.2 0.z
0.8 0.9
92.8 1016



e

o
e

[ PTG SO R [P P SV T D o, waey ey g o BB o ey o g gt e 1
Motes to Consolidated Finarcial Statemen

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Nalcor Energy (Nalcor) is incorporated under a special act of the Legislature of the Province of Newfoundiand
and Labrador (Province) as a Crown corporation and its business includes the development, generation and sale
of electricity, oil and gas, wind energy, industrial fabrication and energy marketing.

Nalcor holds interests in the following subsidiaries and jointly controlled companies:

Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro (Hydo) is incorporated under a special act of the Legisiature of the Province.
The principal activity of Hydra is the generation, transiission and sale of electricity. Hydro's activities include
both regulated and non-regulated activities,

Churchill Falls (tabrador) Corporation Limited {Churchill Falls) is incorporated under the laws of Canada and owns
and operates a hydroelectric generating plant and related transmission facilities situated in Labrador which has
a rated capacity of 5,428 megawatts {(MW).

Twin Falls Power Corporation (Twin Falls) is incorporated under the laws of Canada and has developed a 225 MW
hydroelecliic generaling plant on the Unknown River in Labrador. The plant has been inoperative since 1974,

Nalcor Energy - Oif and Gas Inc. (O aad Gas) is incorporated under the Corparations Act of Newfoundland and
Labrador. 0il and Gas has a broad mandate to engage in upstream and downslieam sectors ol the oil and gas
industry including exploration, development, production, transportation and processing,

Nalcor Energy - Bull Arm Fabrication inc. {8ull Arm Fabrication) is incorporated under the Corporations Act of
Newfoundland and Labrador. Bull Arm Fabrication is Atlanlic Canada’s largest industrial fabrication site and has
a tuily integrated infrastructure to support large-scale fabrication and assembly. lts facilities include onshore
fabrication halls and shops, & dry-dock, and a deepwater site. The Province trapsferred its shares in
Bufl Arm Fabrication to Nalcor eflective March 31, 2009. The transfer has been accounted for using the
continuily of intesests method which resulted in a restatement of 2008 comparative figures 1o include Bull Arm
Fabrication’s financial position, results of operations and cash fHows as if Bull Arm Fabrication had been combined

since ils inception.

Gull 1sland Power Corporation {GIPCo) is incorporated under the laws of Canada. its objective was to develop the
hydroetectric potential at Gull island on the lower Churchill River in Labrador, and construct a direct current
transmission system from Labrador to the island of Newfoundiand. Lower Churchill Development Corporation
(LCDC) is incorparated under the laws of Newfoundtand and Labrador with the objective of developing all or part
of the hydroelectric potential of the lower Churchill River (Lower Churchill Development). 8oth GIPCo and 1LCDC
are inactive. All current Lower Churchill Development activities are being conducted in Nalcor.

Nalcor and its subsidiaries and joinlly cantrolied companies, ather than Twin Falis, are exempt from paying
income taxes under Section 149 (1) (d) of the tncome Tax Act.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles,

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Nalcor and its subsidiary companies:
Hydro (100% owned), Qil and Gas (100% owned), Bull Arm Fabrication (100% owned), GIPCo (100% owned)
and LCDC (51% owned). intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Effective June 18, 1999, Hydro, Churchill Falls and Hydro-Québec entered into a shareholders' agreernent which
provided, among other matlers, that certain of the strategic operating, financing and investing policies of
Churchill Falls be subject to approval jointly by representatives of Hydro and Hydto-Quebec on the Board of
Directors of Churchill Falis. Although Hydro retains its 65.8% ownership interest, the agreement changed the
nature of the relationship between Hydro and Hydro-Québec, with respect to Churchitl Falls, from that of majority
and minority shareholders, respectively, lo that of joint venturers. Accordingly, Hydro has adopted the
propostionate consolidation method of accounting for its interest in Churchill Falls subsequent to the effective
date of the shareholders' agreement.

A portion of Hydio's shareholding in Churchill Falls was deposited in a voling trust pursuant Lo an agreement with
Hydro Québe, in relation to Churchill Falls' General Mortgage Bands. Effective February 25, 2008, the bonds were
ietired, removing the requirement for the shares Lo be held in trust.

Churchilf Falis holds 33.33% of the equity share capital of Twin Falls and is a party with other shareholders in a
participation agreement which gives Chuechill Falls joint control of Twin Falis. This investment is accounted for
by the proportionate consolidation method.

substantially ail of Ot and Gas’ activities are conducted jointly with others and accordingly these statements
reflect only Nalcor's proportionate interest in such activilies.

Use of Estimates

Preparation of these Consolidated Financial Slatements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported and disclased in these statements and related notes. Key areas where management
has made complex or subjective judgements include the fair value and recoverability of assets, (he reported
amounts of revenue and expenses, litigation, environmental and asset retirement obligations, amortization,
property, plant and equipment and other employee future benefits. Actual results may differ from these
estimales, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the Newfoundland and Labrader Board of
Commissioners of Public Utilities (PUB), and these differences could be material.

Rates and Regulations

Hydra's revenues from its efectrical sales to most custorners within the Province are subject to rale regulation
by the PUB. Hydro's borrawing and capital expenditure programs are also subject to review and approval by the
PUB. Rates are set through periodic general rate applications utilizing a cost of service (COS) methodology. The
allowed rate of felurn on rate base is 7.4% (2008 - 7.4%). Hydro applies various accounting policies thal ditfer
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from enterprises that do not aperate in a rate regulated environment. Generally these policies result in the
deferral and amortization of costs or credits which will be recovered or refunded in future rales. In the absence
of rate regulation these amounts would be included in the determination of net income in the year the amounts
are incurred, The effects of rate regulation on the financial statements are more fully disclosed in Note 6.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-term investments

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments cansist primarily of Canadian Treasury Bills and Bankers’
Acceptances. Those with ariginal maturities at date of purchase of three months or less are classified as cash
equivalents whereas those with ariginal maturities beyond three months and less than 12 months are classitied
as short-term investments. The short-term investments bear interest rates of 0.26% to 0.65% (2008 - 1.58% to
3.60%) per annum. Cash and cash equivatents and short-term investments are measured at fair value.

Fuel and Supplies
Fuel and supplies inventories are recorded at the fower of average cost of net realizable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recoided at cost, which comprises materials, fabour, conlracted services, other
costs directly refated to construction and an allocation of certain overhead costs. Expenditures for additions and
betterments are capitalized and normal expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to aperations. The
cost of property, plant and equipment under construction is transfersed to property, plant and equipment in
service when construction is completed and facilities are commissioned, at which point amortization commences.

Contributions in aid of construction are funds received from customers and governments toward the incurred cos!
of property, plant and equipment, ot the fair value of assets contributed. Contributions are treated as a reduction
to property, plant and equipment and the net property, plant and equipment is amortized.

Gains or losses on the dispasal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in income as incurred.

Nelcor. Qil and Gas z0d Bull Arm Fabrication
Amorlization is calculated on a siraight-line basis over service lives ranging from five to 27 years.

Hydro

Amortization is calculated on hydroelectric generating plant and on transmission plant in service on the sinking
fund method using interest factors ranging from 5.25% to 15.79%. Amortizalion on distribution system and
other plant in service is calculated on the straight-line method. These methods are designed to fuily amortize
the cost of the facilities, after deducting contributions in aid of construclion, over their estimated service lives.
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Estimated service lives of the major assets are as follows:

Generation plant

Hudroelectric 50, 75 and 100 years

Thermal 25 and 30 years

Diese| 20 years
Transmission

Lines 40 and 50 years

Switching stations 40 years
Distribution systam 30 years
Qther . 3 1o SO years

Hydroelectric generation plant includes the powerhouse, turbines, gavernors and generators, as well as water
conveying and controf structures, including dams, dykes, tailrace, penstock and intake structures. Thermal
generation plant is comprised of the powerheuse, lurbines and generators, boilers, oil storage tanks, stacks and
auxiliary systems. Diesel generation plant includes the buildings, engines, generators, switchgear, fuel storage
and transter systems, dykes and liners and cooling systems.

Transmission lines include the support structures, foundations and insulators associated with lines at voltages
of 230, 138 and 69 kilovolt (kv). Switching station assets are used to step up voitages of electricity from
generating to Uansmission and to step down voltages for distribution.

Distribution system assets include poles, transtarmers, insulators and conductors.

Other assets include teleconlrol, computer software, buildings, vehicles, furniture, tools and equipment.

Churchill Falls.

Churchill Falls uses the group amortization method for certain property, plant and equipment, other than the
generation plant, ransmission and terminals and service facilities.

Amorlization is calculated on a straight-ine basis over the following estimated usefu! lives:

Hydroelectric generation plant 67 years
Transmission and terminals 67 years
service facilities ) 67 years
Other 5t 100 years

Petroleum and Natural Gas Properties

Nalcor employs the full cost method of accounting for oil and gas interests whereby alf costs related to the
acquisition, exploration for and development of petroleurn and natural gas reserves are capitalized. Such costs
include land acquisition costs, geological and geophysical costs, carrying charges of non-producing properties,
drilling of productive and non-productive wells, the cost of petroleym and natural gas production equipment and
administrative costs directly related to exploration and development activities.
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Under the full cost method, capitalized costs, 1ogether with estimated future capital costs associated with proved
reserves, are depleted and deprecialed using the unit-ol-production methed based on estimated gross proved
reseves at future prices and costs as determined by independent reservoir engineers,

Costs of acquiring and evaluating unproved properties and certain costs associated with major development
projects are not subject to depletion unti{ proved reserves are attributable to the property, production commences
of impairment occurs. The carrying value of petroleum and natural gas properties is assessed annually or as
circurnstances dictate.

Impairment fosses ate recognized when the carrying value exceads the sum of:
+ the undiscounted fulure net cash flows from production of proved reserves based on forecast prices
and costs;

- the costs of unproved properties, less impairment; and

- the tosts of major development projacts, less impairment.

The amount ol impalrment 05s is the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the sum of:
- the fair vafue of proved and probable reserves; and

- the cost, less Impairment, of unproved properties and major development projects.

Capitalized Interest

Interest is charged to construction in progress until the project is complete at rates equivalent to the weighted
average cost of debt or the last approved weighted average cost of capital for regulated assets. Capitalized
imterest cannot exceed actual interest incurred.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The fair value of the future expenditures required to setile legal obligations associated with the retirement of
property, plant and equipment, are recognized to the extent that they are reasonably estimable. Asset
retirement obligations are recorded as a liability at fair value, with a corresponding increase to property, plant
and equipment. As it is expecied that Nalcor's assets will be used far an indefinite period, no removal date can
be determined and consequently, a reasonable estimate of the fair value of any related asset retirement
obligation cannot be determined at this time. If it becomes possible to estimate the fair value of the cost of
remaving assels that Nalcor is legally required to rernave, an asset retirernent abligation will be recognized at
that time.

impairment of Long-lived Assets

Nalcor reviews the carrying value of its oil and gas praperties and development projects at the end of each
accounting period. Nalcor reviews the carrying value of its other property, plant and equipment whenever events
or changes in ciscurnstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
corresponding to the amount by which the carrying value exceeds fair value is recognized, if applicable.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized on the accrual basis, as power deliveries are made, and includes an estimate of the value
of electricity consumed by customers in the year, but billed subsequent to year-end. Sales within the Province
are primarily at rates approved by the PUB. Sales to other markets are at rates of at market prices under the terms
of applicable contracts.
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A power contract with Hydro-Québec (Power Contract), dated May 12, 1969, provides for the sale of substantially
alf the energy from Churchill Falls untit 2641, The Power Cantract has a 40-year term to 2016 which then renews
tor a further term of 25 years. The qate is predetermined in the Power Contract and decreases from the existing
rate of 2.5426 mills per kilowall hour (kwh) to 2.0 mills per kwh upon renewal in 2016.

Churchill Falls receives revenues from Hydro-Québec, under a quaranteed winter availability contract (GWAC)
through 2047, The GWAC provides (or the sale of 682 MW of guaranteed seasonal availabilily to
Hydro-Québec during the months of November through March in each of the remaining years until the end
of the Power Conlract.

The value of ditferences between energy delivered and the Annual Energy Base (AEB), as defined in the Power
Contract, are tracked over a four-year period and then either recovered from or refunded to Hydro-Quebec over
the subsequent four-year period, unless the balanice is less than $1.0 million in which case it is recovered or
refunded immediately. These long-term receivables or long-term payables are subject to interest at 7% per
annum (2008 - 7%).

Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency transactions are translated into their Canadian dollar equivalent as follows:

(@) At the transaction date, each asset, liability, revenue or expense is translated using exchange rates in effect
ar that date.

(b) At the date ot settiement and at each balance sheetl date, monetary assets and liabitities are adjusted to
reflect exchange rates in effect at that date. Any resulting gain or loss is reflected in income,

{¢) Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in income except for unrealized gains and losses selated to
First Morlgage Bonds which were recoverable under the Pawer Contract.

Employee Future Benefits
Employees participate in the Pravince's Public Service Pension Plan, a multi-employer defined benelit plan. The
employer's contributions are expensed as incurred.

Nalcor provides group life insurance and health care benefits on a cost-shared basis to retired employees, in
addition to a severance payment upon reticement. The expected cost of praviding these other ernployee future
benefits is accounted for on an accrual basis and has been actuarially determined using the projecied benefit
method prorated on service and managernent's best estimate of satary escalation, retirement ages of employees
and expected health care costs. The excess of net curnulative actuarial gains and losses aver 10% of the accrued
benefit obligation are smortized over the expected average remaining service lile of the employee group, which

is approximately 13 years.

Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

EinangialInstuments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized an the balance sheel when Nalcor becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent measurement is

based on classification. Nalcor has classified each of its financial instruments into the following categories:
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(inancial assets and liabilities held for trading; loans and receivables; financial assets held to maturity; financial
assets available for sale; and other financial liabilities,

Nalcor has classitied its financial instruments as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents Held-~for-trading
Short-term Investments Avallable-for-sale
Accounts receivable Loans and recejvables
Sinking funds - Investments In same Hydro issue Heid-to-maturity
sinking funds - other investments Available-for-sale
Reserve fund Available-for-sale
Long-term receivable Loans and receivables
Bank indebtedness Other Habilitles
Accounts payable and accrued fiabililes Other liabilities
Promissory notes - Other liabilities
Long-term debt Other liabilitles

Each of these financial instruments is measured at amortized cost, except for the reserve fund, sinking fund -
other investments, cash and cash equivalents, and short-term investments which are measused at fair value.

Transaction costs related to financial assels and financial liabilities are included as part of the cost of the
instrument, with the exception of cash and cash equivalents and short-term invesiments which are expensed
as incurred, based upon the pricing obtained during the quotation process. Discounts and premiums on financial
instruments are amortized 1o income over Lhe life of the irstrument.

Derivative Instruments and Hedqing Activities
Derivative instruments are utilized by Natcor t¢ manage market risk. Nalcor's policy is not lo utilize derivative

instruments for speculative purposes. Nalcor may choose to designate derivative instruments as hedges and
apply hedge accounting if there is a high degree of correlation between price movements in the desivative
instruments and the hedged items. Nalcor formally documents all hedges and the risk management abjectives
at the inception of the hedge. Derivalive instruments that have been designated and qualify for hedge
accounting are classified as either cash flow or fair value hedges.

Nalcor has designated forward foreign exchange contracts as cash flow hedges (Notes 7 (d) and 15). irt a ¢ash
llow hedge relationship, the portion of gains or losses on the hedging item that is determined to be an effective
hedge is recagnized in Other Comprehensive income {0C}), while the ineffective portion is recorded in net

income. The amounts recagnized in 0C! are reclassified in net income when the hedged itern atfects net income.

Nalcor had no fair value hedges in place al December 31, 2009 or 2008.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New Accounting Policies
Effective January 1, 2009, Nalcor adopted the following new accoynting standards issued by the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA):

Goodwill and Intangible Assels
Section 3064, Goodwill and intangible Assets establishes standards for the recognition, measurement,

presentation and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets and provides more comprehensive guidance
particularly with respect to internally developed intangible assets. This new standard did not have any impaci
on Nalcor’s financial results or disclosures.

Financial instruments

EIC-173, Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities issued by the Emerging Issues
Committee. This abstract requires that an entity's own credit risk (for financial labifities) and Lhe credit risk of
the counterparty (for financial assets) should be taken into account in determining the fair value of financial
assets and financial liabilities, induding derivative instruments, The adoption of this abstract did not have a
material impact on Nalcor's Consolidaled Financial Statements.

Nalcor also adopted the changes made by CICA to Section 3862, Financial instruments - Disclosures whereby an
entity shall classity and disclose fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that refiects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy shall have the following fevels:

Level 1 - valuation based on guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets {or identicat assets of liabilities.

Level 2 - vatuation techniques based on inputs other than quoled prices included in Level 7 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3 - valuatian techniques using inputs for the asset of liability that are not based on observable market data

{unohservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inpuls exist. A financial
instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a significant input has been considered in
measuring fair value. The required distlosures are included in Note 15.

Future Accounting Changes
Business Combinations, Consolidated Financial Statements and Non-controlling Interests

In January 2009, the CICA issued the following new Handbaok sections: Section 1582, Business Combinations,
Seclion 1607, Cansolidated Financial Staleraents and Section 1602, Non-controlling Interests which replace
Section 1581, Business Combinations and Section 1600, Consolidated Financial Statements. These new Sections
will be applicable to financial statements relating to fiscal vears beginning on or after January 1, 2011. Early
adoption is permitted to the extent the three new Sections are adopted simultanecusly. Together, the new
Sections establish standards for the accounting for & business combination, the preparation of consolidated
financial statements and the accounting for a non-controlling interest in a subsidiary in consolidated financial
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statements subsequeni to a business combination. Nalcor does nol expect thal the adoplion of these new
Sections will have a material impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

International Financial Reperling Standards (IERS)
in October 2009, the Accounting Standards Board (AcSH) issued a third and final Omnibus Exposure Draft

confirming that publicalty accountable enterprises in Canada will be required to apply IFRS in full and without
modification, for interim and annual financial stalements for fiscal years beginning on or afier January 1, 2011.
Accordingly, starting in 2011, Nalcor will present its financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and will be
required 1o present restated comparative information for its year-ended December 31, 2010 balances, and will
also restate its opening balance sheet a5 at January 1, 2010.

Nalcor is continuing to assess the financial reporting impacts of the adoption of IFRS, however, the impact of
these differences on Nalcor's future tinancial position and results of operations are nat reasonably estimable o
determinable at this time. Nalcor does anticipate a significant increase in disciosure resulting from the adoption
of IFRS and is continuing to assess the level of disclosure required as well as any system changes that may be
necessary to compile and process the information,

The International Accounting Standards Board (IAS8) project schedule had indicated that a final standard on
rate-regulated activities would be refeased in the second quarter of 2010. Commentary received on the Exposure
Draft, and the resulting activities now planned by the 1ASB, creates uncerlainty as to if and when a final standard
will be released. If a final standard is released, it may nal be until tate 2017, Accordingly, Nalcor is unable to
conclude on the impact, if any, of differences that will apply to accaunting for rate-regulated aclivities under IFRS
versus Canadian GAAR

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Contributions
in aid of Accunutated Net Book
Cost Construction Amortization Value
(miltions of doflars) 2009
Electric - generation 17221 29.6 581.7 1,10.8
Elegctric — transmission 822.9 &7.7 263.3 491.5
and distribution
Development prajects 1942 - - 194.2
Other 295.5 235 167.2 104.8
30347 1208 1,012.2 1,801.7
(millions of doltars) 2008
Electric — generation 17211 273 5739 [RICXE]
Electric — transmission 7987 60,2 248.2 4903
and distribution
Development projects 157.0 - - 157.0
Other 2916 324 163.0 as.2
2,968.4 nas 985, 1.863.4

As at December 31, 2009, the cost of assets under construction and therefore excluded from costs subject to
amortization was $200.9 million (2008 - $169.5 million).
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5. PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS PROPERTIES

{mitlions of dollars) 2008 2008
Petroleum and natural gas properties 193.8 nz.i
Accumulated depletion -

. 193.8 1121

imternal costs directly related to acquisition, exploration and development activities capitalized in 2009 were 50.2
million (2008 - 50.2 miltien).

As at December 37, 2009 and December 31, 2008 all costs of petroleum and natural gas properties were not
subject to depletion and depreciation.

Petraleum and natural gas properties indlude Nalcor's acquisition costs and proportionate share of exploration
and development casts. Nalcor has a 4.9% working interest in the Hebron oil field, a 5.0% working interest in
the white Rose Growth Project and an average working interest of 67% in three onshore exploration permits.
On February 16, 2010, Nalcor acquired a 10% working interest in the Hibernia Southern Extension.

Acquisitions

On January 30, 2009, Oil and Gas signed an agreement to purchase a 5% working interest in the oil resources
contained within the White Rose Growth Project which includes the North Amethyst Field, west White Rose and
the South White Rose Extension. The purchase price was a maximum of $30.0 million, to be paid in two
instalments. The first instalment of $7.0 million was paid on January 30, 2009; the remaining payment will be
made upon the delermination of the West White Rose Extension oil reserves. This payment will be dependent
on the extent of these oil reserves but will be no more than $23.0 miliion.

On August 7, 2009, Oil and Gas announced its operatorship in three exploration permits in Western Newfoundland
acquiring an average of 67% gross working interest in the Lhree permits. Oil and Gas acquired the permils from
Leprechaun Resources for a purchase price of 50.6 million. 0il and Gas has also assumed its proporijonate share
of Leprechaun Resources” work commilments valued at 50.6 milfion, which is refundable upon completion of the

drifling program.

-514 -



6. FINANCIAL STATEMENT EFFECTS OF RATE REGULATION

Remaining Recovery

Settement
(millions of doilors) . 2008 2008 Period (years)
Reautatory assets
Forelgn exchange losses 68.9 7h1 320
Deferred regulatory costs - 0.2 -
Deferred major extraordinary repalrs 49 76 28
Deferred study costs [=A] 0.2 2.0
Deferred wind power costs - 0.5 -
Deteired energy conservation costs 02 - n/a
Yotal regulatory assets 74 79.6
Less current portion 4.8 5.0
69.3 4.6
Regulatory liabliities
Rate stabilization plan 122.0 5%.2 nla
Deferred purchased power savings 0.6 0.6 17.5
Total regulatory Kabilities 1226 53.8
Less current portian B9.8 22.3
328 315

Nalcor's subsidiary, Hydro, has operations that are reguiated by the PUB.

Requlatory assets represent future revenues associated with certain costs, incurced in current or prior periods that
are expecled to be recovered from cuslomers in future periods through the rate-setting process. Regulatary
liahilities represent future seductions or limitations of increases in revenues associated with amounts that are
expected to be refunded to customers as a result of the rate-setting process. The risks and uncertainties related
to requlatory assels and liabilities are subject to periodic assessment. When Hydro considers that the value of
these requlatory assets or liabilities are no longer likely to be recovered of repaid through future rate
adjustments, the carrying amount is reflected in aperations. The following is a description of each of the
circumstances in which rate requlation affects the accounting for a transaction or event.

Rate Stabilization Plan and Related tong-term Receivable

On jaruary 1, 1986, Hydro, having received the approval of the PUB, implemenled a Rale Stabilization Plan
(RSP) which primarily provides for the defercal of fuel expense variances resulting from changes in fuel prices,
levels of precipitation and load. Adjustments required in retail rates to cover the amortization of the balance in
the plan are implemented on july 1 of each vear. Similar adjustments required in industrial rates are
implemented on January 1 of each year.

Pursuant to Order No. PU. 7 (2002-2003) and Order No. RU. 40 (2003) RSP balances which accumulated prior to
December 31, 2003, were converted to a long-term receivable bearing interest at the weighted average cost of
capital to be recovered over a four-year period, which commenced in 2004. The recovery period for industrial
cystomers ended on December 37, 2007, and for the utility customers on June 30, 2008, and any remaining
balances were transferred to the current plan, Any subsequent balances accumutating in the RSP, including
financing charges, are to be recovered in the following year, with the exception of hydraulic variation, which will
be recovered or refunded at a rate of 25% of the outstanding batance at year-end. Additionally, a fuel rider is
calculated annually based on the forecast fuel price and is added to or subtracted from the rates that would
otherwise be in effect.
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Hydio recoqgnizes the RSP balances as a requiatory asset or liability based on the expectation that rates will be
adjusted annually 1o provide lor the collection trarm, or refund to, customers in future periods. In the absence
of rate regulation, Canadian generally accepted accounting principles require that the cost of fuel be recognized
as an operating expense in the period in which it was consumed. In 2009, $42.3 million was recognized (2008
- $9.1 million) in the RSP and §18.3 million (2008 - $14.9 miflion) was recovered through rates and included in

energy sales, wilh a conresponding cost amortized in fuel expenses.

Froreign Exchange Losses

Hydro incurred foreign exchaage losses related Lo the issuance of Swiss Franc and Japanese Yen denominared
debt in 1975 and 1985, respectively, which were recognized when the debt was repaid in 1997, the PUB has
accepted the inclusion of realized foreign exchange losses related to long-term debt in rates charged (o customers
in future periods. Any such loss, net of any gain, is deferred to the time of the nexl rate hearing for inclusion
in the new fates to be set at that time. Accordingly, these losses are recognized as a requlatory asset. In the
absence of rate regulation, Canadian generally accepled accounting principles would require that Hydro include
the losses in operating costs, in each year that the related debt was outstanding, to reflect the exchange rates
in effect on each reporting date.

Commencing In 2002, the PUB ordered Hydro's deferred realized foreign exchange losses be amortized over a
40-year period. This amortization, of $2.2 million annally, is included in interest expense (Note 16).

Deferred Regulatory Costs

Pursuant to Order No. PU. 8 (2007), the PUB approved the deferraf and amortization of external costs associated
with Hydro's 2006 General Rate Application in the amount of $0.6 miltion. These costs are recognized as 2
regulatory asset. In the absence of rate requlation, Canadian generally accepted accounting principles would
require that Hydro include these costs in operating costs in the yeai incurred, In 2009, $0.2 miflion (2008 - $0.2
million) of amortization was recognized in operations and administration expense.

Deferred Major Extraordinary Repairs

Inits report dated April 13, 1992, the PUB recornmended that Hydro adopt a policy of deferring and amortizing
the costs of major extraordinary repairs in excess of $0.5 militon, subject to PUB approval on a case-by-case basis.
In 2005, Hydro started an asbeslos abatement program at the Holyrood Thermal Generating Station (HTGS).
This program was carfied out aver a three-year period. Pursuant to Qrder No. PU. 2 (2005), the PUB approved
the deferral and amortization of these costs as a major extraordinary repair. Accordingly, the costs incurred in
each year of the program were recognized as a regulatory asset to be amortized over the subsequent five-year
period. tn 2006, Hydro incurred $2.3 million in expenses 1o repair a boiler tube failure at the HIGS. Pursuant to
Order No. PU. 44 (2006), the PUB approved the deferral and arnortization ol these costs as a major extraardinary
repair. Accordingly, these cosls are being amortized over a five-year period. 1n 2007, $2.0 million of expenses
related to a turbine failure were deferred as a major extraordinary repair. This amount, net of insurance proceeds,
was expensed in 2008, In the absence of rate regulation, Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
would require tha! Hydro expense the cost of the asbestos abatement program and the boiler tube repairs in
the year incurred. 1n 2009, $2.7 million (2008 - $2.7 million) of amortization was recognized in aperations and

administration expense.
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Deferred Study Costs

Pursuant to Order No. PU. 14 (2004), the PUB directed Hydro to condudl an independent study of the treatment
of Newfoundland Power’s generation in Hydro’s (0S, and an independent marginal cost study, and to accumulate
these costs in a deferral account to be dealt with at the next general rate application. Pursuant to Order No. PU.
8 (2007), Hydro received approval lor recovery of these costs over a three-year period commencing in 2007.
Accordingly, these costs have been recognized as a requlatory asset. In the absence of rate reguiation, Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles would require that Hydra include the cost of these studies in operaling
costs in the year incurred. In 2009, there were no additions (2008 - nil) and $0.7 million (2008 - $0.2 million)
of amortization was recognized in operations and administration expense,

Deferred Wind Power Costs

Pursuant to Order No. PU. 20 (2008), the PUB agreed to aliow Hydro to defer $0.5 million in costs associated
with connecting the wind farms at St. Lawrence and fermeuse to the Island interconnected Grid through
Newfoundland Power’s transmission system and accordingly, these costs have been recognized as a regulatory
asset. These costs were expensed in 2009. In the absence of rate requiation, Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles would require that Hydro include these ¢osts in operating Costs in the year incufred.

Deferred Enerey Conservation Costs

Pursuant to Order No. PU. 8 (2007), Hydro received approval to defer costs associated with an electrical
conservation program for residential, industrial, and commercial sectors and, accordingly, these costs have been
recagnized as a requlatory assel. in the absence of rate regulation, Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles would require that Hydro include this program as operating costs in the year incurred. 1n 2009, $0.2
million (2008 - nil) was deferred.

Deferred Purchased Power Savings

in 1997, Hydro interconnected communities in the area of L'Anse au Clair to Red Bay to the Hydro-Québec
electricity systemn. In its report dated July 12, 1996, the PUB recommended that Hydro defer the benelits of a
reduced initial purchased power rate, (0 be amortized cver 3 3(-year period, These savings in the amount of
$0.6 million (2008 - 50.6 million) are recegnized as a requlatory lability. in the absence of rate regulation,
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles would require that Hydro include the actual cost of purchased

power in aperating costs in the year incurred.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The PUB permits an allowance for funds used duning construction (AFUDC), based on Hydio's weighted average
cost of capital, to be included in the cost of capital assets and amortized over future periods as part of the total
cost of the related asset. In 2009, Hydro’s AFUDC of 7.6% is higher than its cost of debt of 7.2% and the amount
capitalized is higher and interest expense is lower by $0.1 million than that which would be permitted in the
absence of rate regulation. In 2008, Hydro’s AFUDC of 7.6% was higher than its cost of debt of 7.3%, the amount
capitalized was lower and interest expense was higher by $0.4 million than that which would have been
permitled in the absence of rate regulation (Note 16).

Hydro amortizes its hydroeleciric generating assets and transmission assets using the sinking fund method, as

appraved by the PUB. In the absence of rate reguiation, these assets would likely be amortized using the
straight-line method.
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During 2005, Hydro engaged an independent consultant to conduct an amortization study. The scope of this
study included a review of Hydro's amortization methods as well as a statistical analysis of service life estimates
and cafculation of appropriate amortization rates and annual and accrued amortization balances as at December
31, 2004. Based on the results of this study, management currently estimates that accumulated amortization
is approximately $170.0-5180.0 million lower than it would otherwise be and annual amortization expense is
$10.0-911.0 millian lower, primarily due to the use of sinking fund rather than straight-line amortization for
hydroelectric and transmission assets. & more iecenl sludy indicated that the amounts could be significantly
higher. An ypdate Lo this study is to be completed in 2010.

7. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

¢mitlions of dollors) 2009 2008
Long-term receivable @) 24.8 26.7
Sinking funds (3} 179.6 163.9
Reserve fund ) 34.8 23.4
Derlvative instruments ) 70 -
Lower Churchill Development Corporation Limited @ -

246.2 214.0

(a) included in long-term receivables are two refundable deposits in the amount of $23.9 million (2008 -
$25.4 mnillion) associated with an application for transrnission service into Québec, bearing interest at one-
year Guaranteed Income Certificate (GIC) rates and a $0.1 million deposit associated with an applicalion lor
transmission service in New Brunswick. The remaining portion of $0.8 million (2008 - $1.3 million) is a long-
terma receivable from Hydro-Québec bearing interest at 7.0%

(bySinking fund investments consist ot bonds, debentures, promissory notes and coupons issued by, or
guaranteed by, the Government of Canada or any province of Canada, and have maturity dates ranging from
2013 to 2033. Hydro debentures, which management intends to hold to maturity, are deducted from long-
term debt while all other sinking fund investments are shown separately on the balance sheet as assets.
Annual conlributions te the various sinking funds are as per bond indenture terrns, and are structured to
ensure the availability of adequate funds at the time of expected bond redemption. Effective yields range
from 4.50% 1o 9.86% (2008 - 4.50% to 9.86%).

(¢) Pursuant o the terms of the 1999 shareholders' agreement, in 2007, Churchill Falls commenced the creation
ot a $75.0 miflion segregated reserve fund to conlribute towards the funding of capital expenditures related
te Churchitl Falls* existing facilities and their replacement. Churchill Falls invested $17.0 million in each of
2007, 2008 and 2009. The remaining investments will be acquired during a 30-day period comrmencing on
each of the following dates:

January 1, 20010 £8.0 million
lanuary |, 201 $8.0 million
lanuary 1, 2012 $B8.0 millian

-518 -



This fund most remain in place until the end of the shareholders' agreement in 2041, Any amounts removed
to fund capital expenditures must be replaced. Reserve fund holdings consist of securities issued by the
Government of Canada, various provinces of Canada and Schedule 1 Canadian Chartered Banks. Nalcor's
share of this commitment is 65.8%,

A summary of Nalcor's 65.8% share of the reserve fund is as lollows:

{miflions of doflurs) 2008 2008
Qpening balance 23.4 1.z
Contribution 1.z 1.2
Total contribution to reserve fund 34.6 224
Net interest (0.2) 0.4
Mark-to-market adjustment 04 0.6
Fair value of reserve fund 34.8 25.4

(d} During 2009, Nalcor entered into a series of 24 foreign exchange forward contracts to manage exchange rate

risk on US dollar (USD) electricity sales. The nominal contract values range from $2.4 millien to $6.0 million
with an average exchange rate of $1.17 Canadian to USD. During the year, eight of these contracts were
seltled with the elfective portion of the gaiv, in the amount of $2.4 million, reported as energy sales and
the ineffective portion as ather income. The 57.0 million represents the fair value of the remaining 16
conlracls outstanding as at December 31, 2009. These contracts have been designated as parl of a hedging
refationship (Note 15).

{e) LCOC was incorporaled in 1978 pursuant Lo the provisions of an agreement (Principal Agreement), between

the Province and the Government of Canada. The Province and the Government of Canada own equity
interests of 51% and 49% of LCDC, respeclively. The Principal Agreement provides that futuie issues of Class
A common shares shall preserve, as clesely as possible, this ratio of beneficial ownership, Hydro is the
designate for the Province's shareholding in LCDC.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Principal Agreement, the Province agreed to enter into an Option
Agreement, daled November 24, 1978, with LCDC in respect of the GIPCo assets and the hydroelectric
developrent rights 1o the Lower Churchill River, (the Water Righls). In cansideration of the option granted
fram the Province, LCDC issued 520 Class A common shares to Hydra valued at $5.2 million.

The aption provided that, upon agreement to continue with the lower Churchill hydroelectric developement,
LCOC would have acquired Lhe GIPCo assets for $94.8 miliion (§100.0 million less the amount of $5.2 millien
representing the shares issued purstiant to the signing of the Option Agreement). A 10% convertible demand
debenture in the amount of $54.8 million would have been issued as consideralion for the GIPCo assets, and
LCDC wauld have acquired the Water Rights from the Province with (he consideralion having been tha issue
of 3,000 Class 8 common shares without nominal or par value.

On Novernber 20, 2008, LCDC was advised by the Province that it would not be extending the Option
Agreement. As a consequence, LCDC's option expired on November 24, 2008, which had the effect of
terminating the Option Agreement. Hydro's share of the option in the amount of $2.7 million was expensed
as an assel write-down in 2008 and the fiability to the Government of Canada for non-controlling interest in
the amount of $2.5 million was eliminated.

Hydro holds 1,540 Class A common shares of LCDC which have a stated value of $0.07 million each. 520

shares were acquired in 1979 pursuant 10 signing of the Oplion Agreement and 510 shares were acquired
in each of the years 1980 and 1981, by way of capilal contributians from the Province.
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8. JOINT VENTURE

The following amounts included in the Consolidated Financial Statements represent Nalcor's proportionate share
of Churchill Falls” assets and liabilities al December 31, 2009, and its proportionate interest i Churchill Falls'
operations tor the year then ended.

{miliions of dullars) 2009 2008
Current assets 45.7 351
tong-term assets 374.5 372.8
Current liabllities . i8.8 10.2
Long-term liabilities 127 ’ 38.0
Revenues 57.4 65.4
Expenses 50.9 5.6
Net incorme 6.5 5.8

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities 153 4
Financing activities 0.9 (5.7}
Investing activities (17.4) 08.7)

income tax expense in the amount of $0.2 million (2008 - $0.2 million) related to a jointly controlled subsidiary,
Twin Falls, has been included in expenses,

9. LONG-TERM DEBY

Churchill Churehill
Hydro Fails Totat Hydro Falis Total

(miilions of dellars) 2009 2008
Lang-term debt 1,149.8 293 11791 1154.7 Q.1 1,184.8
Less current porton 8.2 293 37.5 83 0.8 9.1
11416 - 1141.€ 1464 29.3 1178.7

Required repayments of long-lerm debt and sinking fund requirements over the next five years will be

as follows:

{miltions of doflars} 2010 201 2012 2013 24

Sinking fund requirements f.2 82 8.2 8.2 8.2

tong-term debt repayment 25.3 - - - 125.0
375 8.2 8.2 6.2 133.2

Nalcor

Nalcor maintains an unsecured tevolving term credit facility with its banker in the amount of $150.0 million
Canadian or US equivalenl. Borrowings in Canadian dollars may take the form of Prime Rate advances, Bankers'
Acceptances (BAs), and Letters of Credit. Borrowings in US0 may take the form of Base Rate advances, LIBOR
Advances and Lellers of Credit. The facility also provides coverage for overdrafis on Nalcor's bank accounts, with
interest calculaled at the Prime Rate. The terms of the credit facility provide for the expansion of the facility up
to $300.0 million Canadian ar US equivalent as 3 non-revolving term credit facility, secured by the guarantee of
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the Province. Al year-end, the only drawing on the facility was one irrevocable letter of credit issued on behalf
of Nalcor's subsidiary, Oif and Gas. This letter of credit, in the amount of $1.5 million, was issued te the Canada-
Newfoundiand and Labrador Offshore Petroleum Board (C-NLOPB) to satisfy certain financial responsibility
requirements specified in the Accords Acts with respect to the issuance of authorizations for petroleum-related
work or activities within the Newfoundland and Labrador offshore area.

Hydro
Face Coupon Year of Year of
Serles value Rate Yo Issue Maturity
(millions of doflors) 2009 2008
v o 125.0 10.50 1989 2014 124.5 1245
X+ 150.0 10.25 1992 2017 149.2 1481
Y o* 300.0 8.40 1986 2026 2931 2929
AB * 300.0 6.65 2001 2031 306.8 306.8
AD* 125.0 5.70 2003 2033 123.6 123.5
AE 225.0 4.30 2006 2016 223.7 223.5
Total debentures 1,225.0 1220.9 1,220.4
Less sinking fund investments
in own debentures 7 53.9
1149.8 1154.5
Other - Q.2
1149.8 1154.7
tess payments due within one year 8.2 83
1,141.6 11464

* Slnking funds have teen established for these issues.

Promissary notes, debentures and long-term loans are unsecured and unconditionally quaranteed as to principal
and interest, and where applicable, sinking fund payments, by Lhe Province. The Province charges Hydro @
guarantee fee of 1.0% annually on the total debt (net of sinking funds) guaranteed by the Province, outstanding
as of the preceding December 31. During 2008 and 2009 the Province waived the paymenl of this fee.

Hydro uses pramissory notes to fulfill its short-term funding requirements. As at December 31, 2009, no
promissory notes were outstanding (2008 - $163.0 million).

Hydro maintains a $50.0 million Canadian or US equivalent unsecured operating credit facility with its banker
and at year-end, there were no amounis diawn on the facility (2008 - nil}. Advances may take the form of a
Primie Rate advance or the issuance of a BA with interest calcujated at the Prime Rale or prevailing Government
BA fee. The facility also pravides coverage for overdrafts an Hydro's bank accounts, with interest calculated at
the Prime Rate, At year-end, Hydro had twa letters af credil outstanding (Note 19(g)} reducing the availability
of the credit facility by $7.5 million. In February 2010 Hydro issued 22 additional letters of credit, see Nole 24.

Churchill Falls
Unillians of dellors) 2009 2008
Bank of NMova Scotlia Credit Agreement

4.4% due December 15, 2010

Quistanding 29.3 30.1
Due within ene year 29.3 0.8
Total long-term dabt - 28,3
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Relinanding

On February 25, 2008, Churchill Falls completed a refinancing of the General Mortgage Bonds. The General
Mortgage Bonds, bearing an interest rate of 7.5% (6.0% nel of suhsidies) were retired and replaced with a
4.4% fixed rate credit agreement with The Bank of Nova Scotia. Principat repayment terms of the new credit
agreement are the same as lhose required by the General Morlgage Bonds which provided for semi-annyal
payments in an amount equal to 1.0% of the aggregate principal amount outsianding on January 1 preceding
each payment date with a final principal payment due in 2010,

Dividend Restfiction
Under the terms of the long-term debt instrurnents, Churchill Falls may pay cash dividends only out of earnings,
as defined, accumuiated from September 1, 1976. A shareholders’ agreement signed in june 1999 places

additional restrictions on common dividends based on cash flow.

Operaling Credit Facility
Churchilt falls maintains a $ 10.0 miltion Canadian unsecured operating credit facility with its banker and at year-

end, there were no amounts drawn on the facility (2008 - nil). Advances may take the form of a Prime Rate
advance or the issuance of BAs with interest calcutated at the Prime Rate or prevailing Government BA fee. The
facility provides coverage for averdrafts on Churchill Fafls' bank accaunts, with interest calculated at the Prime
Rate. At year-end, Churchill Falls has one letter of credit outstanding (Note 19{g)) reducing the availability of the
credit facility by $0.7 millian.

10. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Unillions of doilars) 2009 2008
Lang-term payable [C)] 4.3 07
Distribution pagable ta Province (b) 0.8 .0

S 1.7

(8) The tong-term payable to Hydro-Québec as at Decernber 31, 2009, represents the accumnulation of differences
between eneigy delivered monthly and the AEB energy billed monthly, which will be tracked during the four-
year period from Seplember 1, 2008 lo August 31, 2012. Currently, the Tull amount of $4.3 million (2008 -
0.7 million) is long-term bearing interest of 7.0%. The final amount will be determined on August 31,
2012, and will be paid/collected monthly beginning September 2012 and ending August 2016.

(b) Prior to January 1, 2009, the Provincial Minister ot Finance was authorized to invest any surplus from Bull
A Fabrication’s operations. Cach year, the surplus or deficit from operations was credited or charged to the
Distribution payable to the Province, however, there are no set terms of payment. This balance contains the
accumulated results of operations of Bull Arm Fabrication since inception up Lo january 1, 2009, tess any
distributions paid to the Province. Ffective January 1, 2009, rental revenues are to be retained and are
reflected in retained earnings.
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11. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Pension Plan
Employees participate in the Province’s Public Service Pension Plan, a multi-employer defined benefit plan. The
employer’s contributions of $5.3 million (2008 - $4.9 million) are expensed as incurred.

Other Benefits

Additionally, Nalcor provides group life insurance and healthcare benefits or a cost-shared basis to retired
employees, and in certain cases, their surviving spouses, in addition 10 a severance payment upon retirement.
In 2009, cash payments to beneficiaries for its unfunded other employee future benefits was $2.7 million (2008
- $3.0 million). An actuarial valuation was performed on December 31, 2009.

(millions of dofiors) 2009 2008
Accrised benefit obligation
Balance at beglnning of year 52.3 686
Current service cost 1.6 2.2
intarest cost 3.9 B
Actuarial loss (gain) 7.6 (13.3)
Benefits pald @n (3.0}
Balance at end of year 727 52.3
Flan deficit 727 52.3
Unamortized actuarial loss as.) 0.4}
Unamortlized past-service cast {0.2) (0.3}
Accrued benefit liability at end of year 54.4 SLe
Umitlions of doliors) 2009 2008

Components of beneflt cost

Current service cost 1.6 2.2
interest cost 3.9 38

Actuarial loss (gain) 17.6 (19.3)

231 (13.3)

Oifference between actual actuarial (gain) loss and amount recognized 17.6) 204
Benefit expense 5.5 7.l
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The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring the accrued benefit obligations and benelit expense are

as follows:

2009 2008
Discount rate — henefit cost 7.5%0 55%0
Discount rate — accrued benefit abligation 6.5% 7.5
Rate of compensatlon increase 3.5% 3.5%0
Assumed health care trend rates:

2009 2008
Initlal health care expense trend rate 7.5% 7.0%
Cast trend decline 1o 5,.0% $.0%0
Year that rate reaches the rate it is assumed to remain at 2014 201

A 1% increase in assumed health care trend rates would have had Lhe follawing effect:

{miilions of dellors) 2008 2008
Current service and interest cost 0.8 1.2
Accrued benefit abligation 18| 7.2

A 1% decrease in assumed health care trend rates would have had the following etfect:

(mittions of dollars) 2009 2008
Current service and interest cost {0.6) (0.8}
Accrued benefit obligation &7 (5.5)

12. SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Share Capital
(millions of doliors) 2009 2008
Common shares

Autharized: unlimited,
issued and outstanding 122,500,000 (2008 - 122,.500.000) 122.5 122.5

in 2007, the Province held 22,503,924 shares in Hydro with a value of $22.5 million and pursuant to the Hydro
Corporation Act, 2007 these shares were transferred to Nalcor. This transfer of shares was accounted tor using
the continuity of interests method. During 2008, Nalcor issued an additional 99,996,076 shaies with a value of
$100.0 rnillion.

Contributed Capital
(millions of doltors) 2009 2008
Totat cantributed capital 3335 1915

During 2009, the Province contributed capital in the amount of $142.0 million (2008 - $77.5 million).
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13. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Nalcor’s primary objectives when managing capital are to minimize Nalcor's cost of capital within the confines
of established risk parameters, and 1o safeguard Nalcor's ability to continue as a going concern. Naicor's
approach to capital management is performed on a consolidated basis. Management monitors the capital
requirement for each subsidiary individually.

The capital managed by Nalcor is comprised of debt {long-term debentures, promissory notes, bank credit
facilities and bank indebtedness) and equity (share capital, contributed capital, accumulated other

comprehensive income and retained earnings).

A summary of the capital structure is odtlined below:

Umiltions of dollars) 2009 2008
Dabt
Long-term detnt 14416 10787
Current portion of jong-term debt 375 9.1
Promissary notes - 163.0
Sinking funds 7s.6} (163.9)
899.5 46.7% 1183.9 55.99%
Equity
Share capital 122.5 122.5
Contributed capital 333.5 1915
Accumulated other comprehensive income 22.0 16,5
Retalned eamings 664.0 604.0
L1420 53,390 9345 4419
Total debt and equity 2,141.5 100.0% 2184 100.0%0
Hydro

Hydro requires access to capital due to the capital intensive nature of the business which is required to ensure
the continued delivery of safe and reliable secvice to-its customers. Hydra's approach to capilal management
encompasses various faciars including monitoring the percentage of Hoating rate debt in the total debt portfolio,
the weighted average term to maturity of its overall debt portfolio, its percentage of debt to debt plus equity
and its earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) coverage of interest. Adjustments fo the <apital structure are
accomplished through adjustments ta the amount of dividends paid to the Shareholder, cash infusion via
conlributed equity and new debl issuance or debt issuance with differing characteristics. Hydro's goal is to
achieve a capital structure and cash flows to support debt.

Churchilt Falls

Churchill Falls” objective when managing capital is to maintain its ability to continue as a going concern. Churchill
Falls’ requirements tor capital in the future are expected to increase, coincident with the aging of the plant and
related infrastructure. The focus of the capital management policy is to provide flexibility to ensure cash continues
to be available to satisfy capital requirements. Managing the level of dividend payments is a key aspact of
ensuring the availability of funding 1o maintain the piant and infrastructure.
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At present, the capital position of Churchilf Falls is weighted heavily toward equity capital (share capital
and retained earnings). The only remaining long-term debt at the end of the year consisted ot a loan from the
Bank of Nova Scatia, the balance of which comprised less than 104 of the churchill Falls capital structure.
This foan carries the same terms of repayment as the former General Mortgage Bonds and will mature in
December of 2010, with any remaining principal due at thal time. Churchill Falls has the right to prepay under
certain conditions and has already taken advantage of the opportunity to do so. On March 19, 2008, Churchill
Falls exercised its prepayment rights under the Credit Agreement to prepay $10.0 riftion in principal effective
March 25, 2008. The corporate stiategy is Lo ensure that funding is in place to extinguish the entire debt by
the end of 2010 without re-financing. The capital structure is adjusted through the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders.

Oil and Gas

Future requirements for ¢apital are expected to increase, coincident with the increase in projects in development,
Capital costs to date have been financed by equity. Once projects reach the production slage, 0il and Gas' cash
from operations will contribyte to funding its capital requirements.

14. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Changes in the fair value of sinking fund and reserve fund investments comprise the items in other

comprehensive income.

Umiflions of dollars) 2009 2008

Balance, beginning of year 6.5 185
Change in fair value of sinking fund Investments [48)) 3.6)
Change in fair value of raserve fund investments a4 0.6
Unreallzed gains on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 6.2 -

Balance, end of year 22.0 8.5

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Fair Value

The estimated fair values of financial instrurments as at December 31, 2009 are based on relevant market prices
and information available at the time. The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based on the quoted market
price for the same or similar debt instruments. The fair value estimates below are nat necessarily indicative of
the amounts that Nalcor might receive or incur in actual market transactions. As a signilicant number of Nalcor's
assets and liabitities, indluding fuels and supplies and property, plant and equipment, do not meet the definition
of financial instruments. The fair value estimates below do not refiect the fair value of Nalcor as a whole.

Cartying Fair Carrying Fair
Vaiue Value value Value

(miltions of doflors) 2009 2008
Long-term debt including amount due within one year 784 1,471.0 1154.8 1.484.8
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gstablishing Fair Value
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, shorl-term investmants, accounts receivable, bank indebtedness and
sccounts payable and accrued liabilities approximates their carrying values due to their short-term maturity.

The falr value of long-term debt is determined using the present value of future cash flows under current
financing agreements, based on the Nalcor's current estimated borrowing rate for loans with similar terms
and conditions.

Fair Value Hierarchy
Financial instruments recosded at fair value are classified using  fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of Ihe inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following fevels:

Level 1 - valuation based on quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabilities.

Level 2 - valuation techniques based on inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are pbservable
for the asset of liability, either directly {i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3 - valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inpuls whenever such inputs exist. A financial
instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a significant input has been considered in
measuring fair value.

Financial instruments induded in Level 1 are cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. Financial
instruments included in Level 2 are the derivative instruments, the reserve fund and sinking funds - ather
investrents. There are no financial instiuments in Level 3.

Risk Management
Exposure to credil risk, ligquidity risk and market risk arises in the normal course of Natcor's business.

Credit Risk

Nalcor is exposed to credit risk in the event of non performance by counterparties 10 its financial instruments.
The majority of the receivables are from regulated utilities which minimizes credit risk. There is risk that Nalcor
will not be able to collect a% of its remaining accounls receivable and amounts owing under its custaimes finance
plans. These financial instruments which arise in the normal course of business do not represent a significant
concentration of credit risk as amounts are owed by a large number of customers on normat credit teqms. Nalcor
manages this credit risk primarily by executing Its credit and collection policy including the requirement for
security deposits from certain customers.

Nalcor manages its investment credit risk exposure by restricting its investments 10 high-quality secusities such
as Canada Treasury Bills, Bankers’ Acceptances drawn on Schedule 1 Canadian Chartered Banks and Term Depasits
issued by Schedule 1 Canadian Chartered Banks. Additionally, the investments hetd within the portfolios of
Churchill Falls do not exceed 10% with any one institution, with the exception of the Government of Canada.
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Liquidity Risk
Nalcor is exposed 1o liquidity risk with respect to its contractual obligations and financial liabilitles. This risk is

managed by maintaining borrowing facilities sufficient to cover both anticipated and unexpected fluctuations
within the operations and by continuously monitoring cash flaws. Short-term liquidity is provided through cash
and cash equivalents on hand, funds from operations, a $300.0 million promissory note program and credit
facilities. Long-term liquidity risk is managed by the issuance of a portfolio of debentures with maturity dates
ranging from 20714 to 2033. Sinking funds have been established for these issues. In addition, the reserve fund
in Churchill Falls and the dividend management policy are used ta meet long-lerm liquidity requirements
associated with debt retirement and capital expenditure programs.

Market Risk

market risk refers primarily to the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, commodity prices and
foreign exchange rates. During 2009, the Board of Directors of Nalcor approved a formal financial risk
management policy that outlined the risks associated with the operations of Nalcor and its subsidiaries and
approaches and guidelines to be follawed in lhe management of thase risks. This poticy will be reviewed by the
Board annuzlly, or more frequently if there is a material change to Nalcor’s financial risks, and outlines a formal
appraval pracess for various hedging instruments used. The Audit Commitiee will provide oversight on behalf
ol the Board with the exception of any items that specifically require Board approval,

Interest Rates

Interest rate risk is managed within {he corporate financing strategy whereby floating rate debt exposures and
interest rate scenarios are forecast and evaluated. A diversified portfolio of fixed and ffoating rate debt is
maintained and managed with a view to an acceptable risk profile. Key quantitative paramelers for interest
rate risk management inctudes the percentage of floating rate debt in the total debt postfolio, coupled with an
examination of the weighled average term fo matucity of the enlire debt portfolio. By setting clear guidelines
in respect to these quantitative parameters, Nalcor attempts to minimize the likelihood of @ material impact on
net income resulting fror an unexpected change in interest rates.

Within Hydro, exposure to changes in interest rates on interest expense related to the short-term debt
portiolio and inlerest income related o the sinking fund investment portfolios, creates risk. Hydro estimates
that a change of 100 basis points from the actual average yield on the shart-term debt portfolio in 2009 would
have resulted in a change in interest expense of $0.5 million (2008 - $1.3 million). Similarly, a change of 100
basis paints from Uhe aclual average yield on the sinking fund investment portfolio in 2009 would have resulted
it 8 change in interest income of $2.3 million {2008 - $2.0 million) and a change in other comprehensive incame
of $16.6 million (2008 - $16.1 millicn). Interest rate (isk on the long-term debt poctfolia is mitigated through
the use of fixed rate debentures.

within Churchill Falls, interest rate risk is mitigated on the company’s long-term debt by virtue of a fixed interes!
rate to maturity. Exposure to changes in interest rates exists on inveslment income relaled to the shorl-term and
reserve fund investment portfolios. Churchill Falls estimates Lhat a change of 100 basis points from the actual
average yield earned on the short-term investment portfolio in 2009 would have resutted in a change in interest
income of $0.1 million (2008 - $0.2 miltion). Similarly, a change of 100 basis points from the actual average vield
earned on lhe reserve fund investment portfolio in 2009 would have resulted in a change in inlerest income of
0.3 million (2008 - $0.2 million) and a change in olher comprehensive income of 50.8 million (2008 - 0.5
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(e} Outstanding commitments for capital projects wtal approximately $22.4 million (2008 - $13.6 mitlion}. In
addition, Oil and Gas has cornmitted L funding its share of all exploration and development projects.

{f) Hydro has entered into a number of long-term power purchase agreements as follows:

Type rating In-service Date Term
Hudroelectric 75 kW 1988 Continual
Hydroelectric 3 MW 1995 25 years
Hydraelectric 4 MW 1958 25 years
Cogeneration 15 MW 2003 20 years
wind 380 kw 2004 15 years
wind 27 MW 2008 20 years
wingd 27 Mw 2009 20 years

Estimated payments due in each of the next five years are as follows:

(mitlions of doflors) 2010 200 202 2013 2014
Power puichases 270 27.6 28.5 295 30.2

On December 16, 2008, the Province licensed Nalcor Energy (o manage and operate hydro facilities on behalf
of the Province. Nalcor is opesating the Star Lake, Grand Falls and Bishop's Falis facilities on a cost recovery
basis. The power purchase agreements that previousty applied lo these facilities have been cancetled
through Legislation.

(g) Nalcor has issued an irrevocable letter of credit, in the amount of 1.5 millian, to the C-NLOPB 1o satisty cerlain
financial responsibility requirements specified in the Accords Acts with respect to the issuance of
autharizations for petroleum-related worlk or activities within the Newtoundland and Labrador offshore area.

Hydro has issued two irrevocable letiers of credit, one in the amount of $7.2 million 1o New Brunswick
Systemn Operator as credit suppos| related to an application for point-to-point transmission service. The second
lelter of credit has been issued 1o the Deparlment of Fisheries and Oceans in the amount of $0.3 miltion as
a performance guarantee in relation to the fish Habitat Compensation Agreement.

churchill Falls has issued an irrevocable letter of credit, in the amount of 50.7 million, for waste management
and compliance with a Certilicate of Approval for the transportation of special hazardous wastes, granted by
the Department of Eavironment and Conservation.

(n)Hydro has received Iundihg in the amount of $2.5 million from the Atlantic Canada Oppartunities Agency in
relation to a Wind-Hydrogen-Diese! research and development project; this funding is repayable by annual
installments of $25,000 per commercial imptementation of the resuiting product. As at December 31, 2009,
there have been ne commercial irmplementations.

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Frovince, Hydro, Chuschill Falis, Gull Arm Fabrication, LCDC, GIPCo and Oil and Gas are related parties of
Nalcor. In addition, the PUB is related to Nalcor by virtue of its status as an agency of the Province. Related party
transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the
amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

-529 -



million). Interest rate risk is managed within the corporate financing strategy whereby foating rate debt
exposures and interest rale scenarios are forecast and evaiuated.

Foreign Currency and Commodily Exposure

Fair value of future cash Hows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the exchange rate
between the foreign currency and the Canadian dollar. Nalcor's primary exposure to both foreign exchange and
commodity price risk ardses within Hydro from its purchases of Ne. 6 fuel for consumption at the HTGS and certain
alectricity sales both of which are denominated in USD.

During 2009, Hydro had total purchases of No. 6 fuel of $87.5 million (2008 - $103.9 million), denorminated in
UsD. Nalcor's exposure to both the foreign exchange and commodity price risk associated with these fuel
purchases is mitigated through the cperation of the RSP, The purpose of the RSP is to both reduce volatility in
custamer rates as well as mitigate potential net income volatitity from fuel price and valume variations. All
variances in actual fuel prices and exchange rates, as compated to that approved in Hydro’s most recent cost of
service study used to set rates, are caplured in the RSP and are either refunded 1o or collected from customers
through automnatic rate adjustments. Nalcor also employs the periodic use of forward currency contracts to avoid
exposure to exchange rates on a particular day.

During 2009, total electricity sates denominated in USO were 542.5 million. Nalcor mitigates this risk through
the use of forward conlracts. During 2009, Nalcor entered into a series of 24 monthly foreign currency forward
contracts, in the amount of $87.8 mitlion USD at an average exchange rale of 1.17 to hedge 75% of Natcor's
forecasted USD sales, the 1ast of which expires in April 2011, These contracts have been designated as part of
a hedging relationship.

Effect of Hedge Accounting on Financial Statements

Net Gains Unrealized Gaing
included in (nctuded in
(millions of dallars} Net Income oci
ineffective portion Q.5 -
Eftective portian 2.4 6.2
16. INTEREST EXPENSE
Umitiions of dollars) 2009 2008
Gross (nterest
Long-term debt 92.0 96.0
Promissory notes 0.8 4.2
2.6 100.2
Accretion of long-term debt 0.4 0.5
Amortization of foreign exchange losses 2.2 2.2
Other 7.2 28
102.4 105.7
Less }
Recovered from Hydro-Québec . - [sR}
Interest capitalized during construction 0.8 k<)
Interest earnad 18, 7.8
Net interest expense B3.5 78.2
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Under the terms of the Power Contract, Churchill Falls recovers the difference between interest calculated at the
rales presciibed in the Power Contract and interest paid on its long-term debt. In addition, Churchitl Falls is
required 1o share with Hydro-Québet any benefits resuling from the refinancing of the General Mortgage Bonds.

Alsa, Churchill Falls can request Hydro and Hydro-Québec to make advances against the issue of Subordinated
Debt obligations, to sefvice its debt and to cover expenses if funds are nol otherwise available. If such requests
tail to attract sufficient advances, Churchill Falls can require Hydro-Québet to make additianal advances, against
the issue of units of Subordinate Debentures and shares of common stock, to service its debl and to cover its

expenses that remain unfunded.

17. CHANGES IN NON-CASH OPERATING WORKING CAPITAL BALANCES

{millions of dollars) 2008 2008
Accounts recelvable m.7 3.4
Fuel and supplies {6.8) 7.0
Prepaid expenses .7 (0.4}
RegUlatory assets S.5 18.9
Regulatory liabilities 68.8 14.8
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 393 (21.5)
Employee future beneflits 2.8 4.z
96.2 36.1

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Nalcor operates in five business segments. Hydro Regulated encompasses sales of electricity to customers within
the Province. Churchill Falls operates a hydroelectric generating facitity and sells electricity pimarily to Rydio-
Québec. Energy Marketing activities include the sale of efectricily to markets outside the Province. 0il and Gas
activities include exploration, developrment, production, transpertation and processing sectors of the oil and gas
industry. Other encompasses industrial fabrication, some non-requlated electricity sales, development aclivities
including the Lower Chuschill Project and corporate activities. The designation of segments has been based on
a combination of requlatory status and management accountability. The segments’ accounting policies are the
same as those previously described in Note 2.
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(millions of dollais)
Ravenue
Energy sales
Other

Expenses

Operations and
adminlstration

Fuels
Interest
Amartization

Power purchased

Net income (10ss)
from operations

Preterred dividends

Net incame (loss)

Capital expenditures

Total assets

Revenue
Energy sales
Other

Expenses

Operations and
administration

Fuels

Interest
Amortization
Power purchasad

Write-gown of
Invastment

net income (loss)
from operations

Preferred dividends

Net income (loss)

Capital expenditures

Total assets

Hydro
Regulated

443.8
2.2
A446.0

00.9

155.2
835
417
46.8
428.
17.9

7.8

S4.d
1,766.0

440.1
2.2
442.3

1A

i64.8
a7.6
40.4
4.4

4333
9.0

8.0

45.6
1.711.4

Churehitl
Falls

6.0
0.3
613

37.7

0.4
12.9

50.9
0.4

1.3
"n?

37
4205

€8.9
03
69.2

388

[SA]
12.6

515
77

3t
20.8

a3
414.4

Gil and
Gas

0.4
0.4

2.7

[sR]

2.8
.4

24

82.6
198.3

032
03

0.4

Q.4
Qn

(0.5

nz2.4
nz2.7
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Energy
Marketing

2008
547
0.7

55.4

17.2

4.2
214
34.0

34.0

10.2

2008

513

513

35

is
478

a78

37

Other

6.0
&1
21

3.4

{0.4)
03

133
Q.2

02

52.7
286.2

6.5

8.0

2.9

(8.5)
0.2

2.7

33

a.7

4.7

43.2
250.4

Inter-
Segment

(3.9)
.3
(2.6)

3.9
.91
13

0.3

(50.5)

(3.9)
34
(0.8)

€32}

3.9

3

(3.1

(27.6)

Total

561.6
1o
5726

7.8

155.2
835
54.9
47.

512.6
6D.0

60.0

1781
2,630.7

563.3
7.0
5703

148.2

164.8
8.2
53.2

4.0
27

488.1
82.2

B2.2

2055
2,475.0



Revenues by geographic area;

(miflions of dollas) 2009 2008

Newfoundland and Labrador 459.6 4487

Qudbec 69.8 12186

hova Scotia 397

New Brunswick 35 -
5726 5703

Alt of Nalcor's assets are located in the Province.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

{(a) Under the terms of a sublease with Twin Falls, expiring on December 31, 2014, Churchill Falls is required to
deliver 1o Twin Falls, at an agreed price, horsepowei equivalent to the installed horsepower of the Twin Falls
plant and to maintain Twin Falls’ plant and equipment. The costs associated with making the plant
operational, if required, are not estimable at this time. in 2015, the physical assets of Twin Falis will revert
to Churchill Falls, and Churchil} Falls is required to make this horsepower avaitable to Hydro at rates that are
commercially reasonable pursuant to the 1999 shareholders' agreement,

(byThe resulls of an Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) conducted at the Twin Falls Generating
Station indicated higher than acceptable concentrations of contaminants in the soil and waters
adjacent to the powerhouse, Further testing was conducted to determine the extent of contamination. The
recommendations arising from this testing indicate that remediation is not required, but further monitoring
be carried out. Further monitoring is recommended for 2010 and every flve years therealter.

(¢) Effective March 31, 2009, Hydro's five-year power sales agreernent to sell energy to Hydro-Québec expired.
Effective April 1, 2009, Hydro entered into a power sales agreement with a third party with respect to the
engrgy previousty sold to Hydro-Québec. To facilitate market access, Hydro has entered into a five-year
transmission sefvice agreement with Hydro-Québec TransEnergie to acquire access 1o 265 MW of transmission
capacity from Labrador through Québec. Hydro has the right Lo renew its transmission service contract at the
end of the cantracl term. If at that time there is @ competing service request for the same patbh, in order to
renew the service agreement, Hydro must agree to accept a contract term that is at least equal to that of
the cempeting request,

Pursuant to Hydro's five-year transmission service agreement with Hydro-Québec TransEnergie, the
transmission rental payments for the next five years are as follows:

2010 $19.2 milllon
201 $19.2 million
2012 $19.2 million
203 $19.2 million
2014 $4.9 million

(d) Nalcor and its subsidiaries have received claims instituted by various companies and individuals with respect
to outages and other miscellaneous matters. Although such matters cannot be predicted with certainty,
management currently considers Nalcar's exposure to such claims and litigation, to the extent not covered
by insurance policies or olherwise provided for, to be 50.1 million (2008 - $0.2 million).

One of Hydro's industrial customers commenced legal proceedings in 1997, claiming approximately
$21.9 million {2008 - $22.2 million) related to outages and plant shutdowns. Hydro is defending this claim.
While the ultimate effect of such an action cannot be ascertained at this lime, in the opinion of Hydro's
management, following consuitation with its fegal counsel, no liability should be recognized.
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{a)Hydio has entered into a long-term power contract with Churchill Falls for the purchase of $5.9 million
(2008 - $6.0 million) of the power produced by Churchill Falls and Nalcor's 65.80 share s eliminated
upon consolidation.

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2009, approximately $2.3 million (2008 - $2.2 million) of operating costs
were recavered from Churchill Falls for engineering, technical, management and administrative services.
Nalcor's 65.8% share is eliminated upon consolidation.

(c) tlydro is required to contribute to the cost of operations of the PUB as well as pay for the cost of hearings
into applications it makes. During 2009, Hydro incurred $0.6 million in costs relaled to the PUB (2008 - 50.6
million) of which $0.1 mitlion (2008 - $0.1 million) was included in accrued liabilities.

(d) Nalcor, and its subsidiaries, have a net payable to the Province of $9.5 million (2008 - $4.3 million). This
payable consists of various transactions including rentals and royalties, power purchases, cosl facoveries and
amounts related o the acquisition of Bull Arm Fabrication. Of the $9.5 million, 58.7 million is included in
Accaunts payable and accrued liabilities (2008 - $3.3 million).

(&) During 2009, Hydro received $0.4 million (2008 - $0.4 million) as a rate subsidy for rral isolated customers
trom the Province and $1.6 million (2008 - $1.5 million) as an energy rebate to offset the cost of basic
electricity consumption for Labrador rural isolated residential customers under the Northern Strategic Plan
with $0.1 million (2008 - $0.1 miliion) recorded as accounts receivable at year-end,

(1) During 2009, Bull Arm Fabrication received $2.0 million (2008 - $0.5 miilion) in funding from the Province.
As at December 31, 2009, $0.5 million is included in deferred credits.

{q) 0il and Gas administers the Petroleum Exploralion Enhancement Program (PEEP), established as part of the
Newfoundiand and Labrador Energy Plan, on behalf of the Province. PEEP is designed to boost new petroteum
exploration in western Newfoundiand through the acquisition and assessment of seismic data. Total funding
available under PEEP is $5.0 million over five years, During 2009, $1.0 million {2008 ~ nil) in funding was
received of which $0.4 million is included in deferred credits at December 31, 2009 (2008 - 50.3 million
included in receivables).

21, SIGNIFICANT OCCURRENCE

On November 3, 2008, a fire occurred in a cable shaft at Churchill Falls causing extensive damage to two sets
of high voltage cables in two units of the cable shaft. This resulted in Nalcor's 65.8% share of lost GWAC
revenue and power sales of approximately $7.7 million and 52.5 million in 2009 and $8.4 miltion and $2.1
million in 2008.

Nalcor's share of totat repair costs ot $5.3 million as of December 31, 2009 was covered by insurance with the

exception of 3 $1.3 million deductible. Repair work was completed on the first unit in February 2009 and the
second unil in Octaber 2009.
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22. ACQUISITION

on March 31, 2009, Nalcor acquired 100% of the shares of Bull Arm Fabrication from the Province for cash
consideralion of one dollar. At the tirne of acquisition, Nalcor and Bull Arm Fabrication were subject to commaon
control. As a result, the acquisition was accounted for using the continuity of interests method and the assets
and tiabilities acquired were recorded at their carrying values. Accordingly, these financial staternents have
been prepared to reflect the financial position and resufts of operations and cash flows as if Nalcor and Bult Arm
Fabrication had been combined since inception.

23. WATER MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

fn June 2007, the Province passed an amendment to the Electrical Power Control Act, 1994 (EPCA). The
amendment requires parties, thal utilize a common water resource in the province for power production, enter
into a water management agreement. ifthe parties cannot reach an agreement, the PUB has the authority to
impose an agreement on the parties. Nalcor's proposed hydroelectric develapment shares the Churchilf River
with Churchill falls’ hydroelectric generation plant. The amendment provides that any resulting water
management agreement will not adversely affect existing power contracts.

A tentative agreement reached between management of Nalcor and Churchill Falls was not approved by the
churchill falls Board of Direclors. As a 1esull, on November 10, 2009, Nalcor applied to the PUB to establish the
terms of the agreement. In Maich 2010, the PUB established an agreement, see Note 24.

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) In January 2010, Hydro entered into 28 swap contracts to hedge the commadity price risk on electricity sales
in the arnount of $24.7 million.

(b)Gn February 16, 2010, 0il and Gas signed formal agreements to purchase a 10% working interest in the
Hibernia Southern Extension for $30.0 million.

(¢) Gn February 23, 2010, Churchill Falls filed a motion against Hydro-Québec in the Québec Superior Caurt. The
maotion is seeking a modification to the pricing terms of the 1969 Power Contract as of November 30, 2009.

The outcome of this motion is not determinable at this time.

On February 3, 2010, the Province established a Lrust with Churchill Falls as the beneficiary. The purpose of
this trust is to fund the external costs and expenses incurred in relation to this matter.

() in February 2010, Hydro issued 22 letters of credit, for fransmission beokings, reducing the availability of its
credit facility by $11.5 mitlion.

(e) On March 2, 2010, Nalcor received notification that a $40.0 million equity contribution from the Province
was approved.

(f) on march 9, 2010, the PUS issued a board order establishing the water management agreement proposed
by Nalcor in November 2009.
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Grant Thormton

AUdﬁt@fS ’ f@p Oft Grant Thornton LLP

187 Kenmount Road
8t. John's, NL.
A1B 3P9

T (709) 722-5960
F (709) 722-7832
www.Gran{Thomton.ca

To the Directors of the
Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for Health Information

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Newfoundland and Labrador
Centre for Health Information at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations,
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements ate the responsibility of the Centre's management. Our responsibility is to
express an optnion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian genetally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatemnent.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all matetial respects, the -
financial position of the Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for Health Information as
at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flow for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador

May 28, 2010 Chartered Accountants
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Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for

Health Information
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets  (Note 11)

Year Ended March 31 2080 2009
Revenue
Government operating grants $ 13,137,780 $ 7,164,089
Canada Health Infoway 2,163,586 5,660,958
Research funding 970,075 1,109,024
Government project grants 3,151,482 2,465,394
Amortization of deferred capital contributions - 874,055 88,293
Interest income 21,260 145,172
20,318,238 16,632,930
Expenditure
Advertising 23,979 25,096
Data communications 708,707 936,538
Depreciation 1,347,185 207,453
Insurance 42,508 32,464
Minor equipment 1,575,464 01,404
Miscellaneous 9,295 21,098
Office supplies 297,093 288,252
Picture Archiving and Communication System
Regional Integrated Health Authority reimbursements - 1,219,684
Professional fees 72,639 104,415
Project consulting fees 4,023,438 5,179,589
Rent 911,744 291,904
Salaries and benefits 8,985,562 6,275,767
Software maintenance 1,883,629 1,165,661
Telephone 159,766 114,440
Training 161,017 174,834
Travel 230,667 311,703
20,432,693 16,410,302
Excess of (expenditute ovet revenue)
revenue over expenditure $ (114,455 § 222628
Net assets, beginning of year $ 1,145,171 $ 922543
Excess of (expenditure over revenue)
revenue over expenditure (114.455) 222,628
Net assets, end of year $ 1,030,716 § 1,145,171
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Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for

Health Information

tatement of Financial Position

March 31 2010 2009
Assets
Current '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 815,558 § 4457193
Receivables (Note 5) 7,049,484 7,383,936
Prepaids 1,132,323 821,544
Deferred project costs 4,610,316 2,964,562
13,608,681 15,627,235
Property and equipment (Note 6) 17,168,205 14.419.239
$30,776,886  § 30,046,474
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals (Note 7) $ 5,380,319 $ 4,715,670
Deferred revenue 9,833,950 14,298 576
15,214,269 19,014,246
Deferred capital contributions (Note 8) 13,719,541 9,306,981
Accrued severance pay 812,360 280,076
25,746,170 28,901,303
MNet Assets
Net assets 1.630,716 1,145,171
$30,776,886  § 30,046,474
Commitments (Note 10)
On behalf of the Board 7
M ey
e A" . .
- Director ) v Director
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Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for

Health Information
Statement of Cash Flows

2010

Year Ended March 31 2009
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Operating
Excess of (expenditure over revenue)
revenue over expenditure $ (114,455 § 222,628
Items not requiring a cash outlay
Depreciation 1,347,185 207,453
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (874,055) (88,293)
Increase in severance pay accrual 232,284 159,165
590,959 500,953
Change in non-cash operating :
working capital (Note 9) (5.422.058) 6,062,940
(4,831,099 6,563,893
Financing
Capital contributions 5,286,614 1,721.948
Investing
Purchase of capital assets (4,103,150) (6,007,045)
Proceeds on sale of capital assets 7,006 -
(4.096,150) (6,007.045)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,640,635) 2,278,796
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of yeat 4,457,193 2,178.397
End of year $ 816,558 § 4,457,193
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Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for

Health Information

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

1. Nature of operations

The Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for Health Information (the Centre) was established
by the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador in 1996 following the recommendation of
the Health System Information Task Force (1995). Through the support of the provincial
government and Canada Health Infoway Inc., the Centre has been recognized for its
contribution to the national agenda for development of the Electronic Health Record with the
first provincial client registry designed and implemented for the Electronic Health Record, The
Centre is also involved with data standards development and dissemination, applied health
research and the evaluation of health information systems.

'The Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for Health Information Act was proclaimed on April
27, 2007, thereby establishing the Centre as 2 Corporation without share capital under the
Corporations Act. The Centre now acts as an agent of the Crown.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared within the framework of Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles, the more significant of which are as follows:

Basis of accounting

These financial statements include only the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures relating
to the operations carried on under the name of Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for Health
Information.

Use of estimates

In preparing the Centre’s financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and Habilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of revenue and expenditure during
the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks, and short term deposits with

original maturtities of three months or less. Bank borrowings are considered to be financing
activities.
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Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for

Health Information

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

Revenue recognition

Govemnment grants are recognized in the period in which entitlement arises. Revenue received
for a future period is defetred until that future period and is reflected as deferred revenue.

Revenue from research and other contracts is recognized as the related expenditures are
incurred. Interest income is recognized as it is earned.

Depreciation

Rates and basis of depreciation applied to write off the cost of property and equipment over
their estimated lives are as follows:

Computer equipment 20%, straight line
Office furniture 15%, straight line
Computer software 33%, straight line
Leasehold improvements 10%, straight line
Pharmacy Network 10%, straight line

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment upon the occutrence of events or changes in
circumstances indicating that the value of the assets may not be recoverable, as measured by
comparing their net book value to the estimated undiscounted cash flows genetated by their use.
Impaired assets are recorded at fair value, determined principally using discounted futare cash
flows expected from their use and eventual disposition.

Capital contributions

Capital contributions ate recorded as deferred contributions and are amortized to income on a
straight line basis using the same rates as the depreciation expense related to the capital assets
purchased.

Deferred project costs

Project costs are deferred as incurred until the same period in which the related revenue can be
recognized as per the terms of the project contract,
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Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for

Health Information

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
Severance pay

Severance pay is accounted fot on an accrual basis and is calculated based upon years of service
and current salary levels. The right to be paid severance pay vests with employees with nine
years of continual service, and accordingly no provision has been made in accounts for
employees with less than nine years of continual service. Severance pay is payable when the
employee ceases employment with the Centre.

Pension costs

Employees of the Centre are covered by the Public Service Pension Plan administered by the
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador. Contributions to the plan are required from both
the employees and the Centre. The annual contributions for pensions are recognized in the
accounts on a current basis. Total pension expense for the Centre in the year was $546,242
(2009 — $362,750).

Financial instruments

The CICA Handbook Section 3855, "Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement”,
tequires the Organization to revalue all of its financial assets and liabilities at fair value on the
initial date of implementation.

This standard also requires the Centre to classify financial assets and liabilities according to their
characteristics and management's choices and intentions telated thereto for the purposes of
ongoing measurements. Classification choices for financial assets include: a) held for trading -
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in excess of revenue over expenditure;
b) held to maturity — recorded at amortized cost with gains and losses recognized in excess of
revenue over expenditure in the period that the asset is no longer recognized or impaired; <)
available-for-sale - measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net assets for
the curtent period until realized through disposal or impairment; and d) loans and receivables -
recorded at amortized cost with gains and losses recognized in excess of revenue over
expenditure in the period that the asset is no longer recognized or impaired.
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Newfoundland and Lébrador Centre for

Health Information

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)

Classification choices for financial Liabilities include: a) held for trading - measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recorded in excess of tevenue over expenditure and b) other —
measuted at amortized cost with gains and losses recognized in excess of revenue over
expenditure in the period that the liability is no longer recognized.

Subscquent measurement for these assets and liabilities are based on either fair value or
amortized cost using the effective interest method, depending upon their classification. Any
financial asset or liability can be classified as held for trading as long as its fair value is reliably

- determinable.

In accordance with this standard, the Centre's financial assets and liabilities are generally
classified and measured as follows:

Asset/Liability Classification Measurement
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading Fair value
Loans and receivables Amortized cost

Recetvables

Payables and accruals Other liahilities Amortized cost

Other balance sheet accounts, such as prepaids, deferred project costs, property and equipment,
deferred capital contributions and deferred revenue are not within the scope of these accounting

standards as they are not financial instruments,

Embedded derivatives ate required to be separated and measured at fair values if cettain criteria
are met. Under an election permitted by this standard, management reviewed contracts entered
into or modified subsequent to Apnl 1, 2007 and determined that the Centre does not currently
have any significant embedded derivatives in its contracts that fequire separate accounting

treatment.

The fair value of a financial instrument is the estimated amount that the Centre would receive or
pay to terminate the instrument agreement at the repotting date. ‘To estimate the fair value of

each type of financial instrument various market value data and other valuation techniques were
used as appropriate, The fait value of cash and cash equivalents approximated its carrying value.
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Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for

Health Information

Notes to the Financial Statements
Match 31, 2010

3. Financial risk management

The Centre’s policy for managing significant risks includes a comprehensive infrastructure of
policies, procedures and oversight designed to reduce the risks identified to an appropriate
threshold. The Board of Directors is provided with timely and relevant reports on the
management of significant risks. Significant risks managed by the Centre include liquidity and
credit risks.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Centre will be unable to meet its contractual obligations and
financial liabilities. The Centre manages liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows and ensuring
that it has sufficient cash available to meet its obligations and liabilities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment
obligations. The Centre’s credit risk is attributable to receivables. Management believes that the
credit risk concentration with respect to financial instruments included in receivables is temote.

4. Capital management

The capital structure of the Centre consists of net assets. The primary objective of the Centre’s
capital management is to ensure adequate funding for efficient operations.

The net assets are available for future operations and are preserved so the Centre can have
financial flexibility in the future.

5. Receivables 2010 2009
Goverament of Newfoundland and Labrador $ 4,562,211 § 3,080,298
Canada Health Infoway 1,243,517 4,025,702
Harmonized sales tax 520,391 -
Other 723.365 277936

$ 7,049,484 § 7,383,936
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Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for

Health Information

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

6. Property and equipment 2010 009
Accumulated MNet Net
Cost Depreciaion  Book Value Book Value

Computer equipment $ 5,552,676 § 1442386 3 4,110,290 § 3,723,712
Office furniture 295,727 113,471 182,256 287,130
Computer software 2,531,927 1,788,553 743,374 313,743
Leasehold improvements 215,476 17,672 197,804 65,545
Pharmacy network 12,438,979 504,498 11,934,481 10,029,109
$ 21,034,785 $ 3,866,580 % 17,168,205 § 14,419,239

During the year, the Centre purchased '354,103,150 of capital assets. As of year end $4,273,260
(2009-$5,602,293) of unfunded additions remain from prior years. The majority of unfunded
assets will be funded through claims once key project milestones have been reached.

During the year, the Centre acquired property and equipment totalling $640,974 (2009 -
$6,378,511) which was not available for use duting the year and was not depreciated.

7. Payables and accruals 2010 2009
Trade and sundry $ 4,415,461 § 4,085,279
Harmonized sales tax - 58,153
Vacation and compensatory pay 964,858 572238
$ 5,380,319 § 4,715,670

8. Deferted capital contributions 2010 2009
Opening balance $ 9,306,981 $ 7,673,326
Capital contributions from Government 3,512,447 (88,062
Capital conttibution from Canada Health Infoway 1,774,168 1,033,886
Amortization of deferred capital contribution (874,055) {88,293)
$ 13,719,541 § 9,306,981
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Newfoundland and Labrador Centre for

Health Information

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

9. Supplemental cash flow information 2010 2009
Change in non-cash operating working capital

Receivables $ 334453 § (987,053)
Prepaids (316,779) (777,546)
Deferred project costs (1,645,754) 1,592,839
Payables and accruals 664,648 1,460,564
Deferred revenue (4,464.,626) 4,774,136

$ (5,422,058) § 6,062,940

10. Commitments

Under the terms of several long-term contracts related to the rental of office space, equipment
lease and software fees, the Centre is committed to make the approximate lease pagments for the

next five years as follows:

2011 § 4,591,423

2012 $ 4,644,573

2013 $ 4,429,427

2014 $ 4242903

2015 $ 3,118,846
11 Comparative figures

Certain of the compatative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement
presentation adopted for the current year.
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURAMCE AGENCY
NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURANCE FUND
FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2010
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Newfoundland and Labrador Crop Insurance Agency
Corner Brook, Newfoundland and Labrador

I have audited the balance sheet of the Newfoundland and Labrador Crop Insurance Agency, Newfoundland
and Labrador Crop Insurance Fund as at 31 March 2010 and the statement of revenues, expenses and deficit
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Agency’s management. My

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. '

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Newfoundland and Labrador Crop Insurance Agency, Newfoundland and Labrador Crop Insurance Fund as at

31 March 2010 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

JOHN L. NOSEWORTHY, CA
Auditor General

St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador
7 June 2010
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURANCE AGENCY
NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURANCE FUND

BALANCE SHEET

31 March 2010 2009

ASSETS

Current

Cash § 130,332 $ 52,356

Accounts receivable (Note 2) 1.902 1.477
§ 132,234 $ 53.833

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 3) $§ 6,591 $ 1.400

Equity

Contributions — Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 280,000 280,000

Deficit ‘ (154.357) (227.567)

125,643 52,433

$ 132,234 $ 53,833

~ NN
Signed on behalf of the Board: (:zﬂ i \“ %%w\ﬁg&!@\i

Chair
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURANCE AGENCY

NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURANCE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND DEFICIT

For the Year Ended 31 March 2010 2009
REVENUES
Government of Canada (Note 4) $ 195,044 $ 189,605
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador (Note 4) 130,029 126,402
Premiums from insured persons 58,351 40,032
Appeal administration fee 100 -
383,524 356,039
EXPENSES
Administration (Note 5)
Bank charges 17 41
Board expenses 1,597 2,607
Equipment supplies 9,463 7,310
Professional services 2,904 2,529
Purchased services 5,626 5,815
Salaries and employee benefits 190,108 189,075
Supplies 10,903 16,691
Transportation and communications 16,928 24 988
237,546 249,056
Refund appeal fees - 100
Indemnity claims 72,768 96.751
310,314 345,907
Excess of revenues over expemses 73,210 10,132
Deficit, beginning of vear (227.867) (237.699)
Deficit, end of vear $ (154.357) $ (227.567)
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURANCE AGENCY

NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURANCE FUND
NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2010

Authority

The Newfoundland and Labrador Crop Insurance Agency (the Agency) operates under the authority of the
Crop Insurance Act. The purpose of the Agency is to operate the Newfoundland and Labrador Crop
Insurance Fund which provides insurance to farmers of the Province through restricting the amount of
financial loss due to crop failure. Iis affairs are managed by a Board of Directors appointed by the
Lieutenant-Governor in Council. These statements are a representation of the activities of the Newfoundland
and Labrador Crop Insurance Fund.

1. Significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared by the Agency’s management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The Agency does not prepare a statement of cash
flows since the changes in cash flows are readily apparent from the other statements.

2. Accounts receivable

2010 2009
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador $ 1,902 $ 1,477
Premiums from insured persons 2,140 2,140
4,042 3,617
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 2,140 2,140
$ 1902 $ 1477
3.  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

2010 2009

Indemnity claim payable to insured persons 5 5191 $ -
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 1.400 1.400
S 6,591 $ 1.400
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURANCE AGENCY
NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR CROP INSURANCE FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 MARCH 2010

Premivm contributions and administration expenses

Under an agreement with the Government of Canada, the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador
recovers 60% of the total government contribution for premiums and eligible administration expenses.

2010 2009
Government of Canada

Premiums contributions $ 52,516 $ 40,171
Payments for administration 142.528 149.434
$ 195.044 $ 189.605

Province of Newfoundland and Labrador
Premiums contributions $ 35011 $ 26,780
Pavments for administration 95018 99 622
$ 130,029 $ 126,402

Payments on behalf of the Agency for administration

Agency staff are employees of the Department of Natural Resources. Excluding bank charges, salaries
and other costs of $237,529 (2009 - $249,015) applicable to the operation of the Agency have been paid
by the Department and are reflected in these financial statements as expenses of the Agency and as
revenue in the form of payments made by the Province and the Government of Canada.

FEconomic dependence

As a result of the Agency’s reliance on provincial funding to meet its operating costs, the Agency’s
ability to continue viable operations is dependent upon continued funding from the Province.

Fimancial instruments

The Agency’s financial instruments recognized on the balance sheet consist of cash, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The carrying values of these instruments
approximate current fair value due to their nature and the short-term maturity associated with them.
Any estimated impairment of accounts receivable has been provided for through an allowance for
doubtful accounts and no further credit risk exists in relation to the financial instruments.

Imcome taxes

The Agency is a Crown entity of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and as such is not subject
to Provincial or Federal income taxes.
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR
HOUSING CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MARCH 2010
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairperson and Members
Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation
St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador

I have audited the balance sheet of the Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation as at
31 March 2010 and the statements of revenues, expenses and surplus, and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at 31 March 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles,
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Auditor General

St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador
25 June 2010
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEET

31 March 2010 2009
(000°s) (000°s)
ASSETS
Cash $ 61,177 $ 40,633
Accounts receivable (Note 2) 10,231 5,346
Due from the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador
- Labrador Housing Programs (Note 3) 2,291 3,341
Inventory and prepaid expenses (Note 4) 3,911 3,418
Mortgages and loans receivable (Note 5) 10,502 13,390
Receivable from municipalities re: land transfers (Note 6) 1,448 1,504
Land assemblies (Note 7) 1,322 7,321
Rental properties (Note 8) 190,167 193,614
Capital assets (Note 9) 11,238 9.070
$ 292,287 $ 277.637
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 14,594 $ 12,021
Deferred revenue (Note 10) 29,418 24,263
Group health and life insurance retirement benefits (Note 11) 14,768 13,343
Capital replacement fund (Note 12) 6,267 6,668
Mortgage insurance fund (Note 13) 3,252 3,252
Mortgages, debentures and similar indebtedness (Note 14) 24,777 24,374
CMHC investment in cost-shared programs (Note 15) 119,570 117,578
203.646 201,499
Equity
Contributed capital - Province of Newfoundland
and Labrador (Note 16) 62,861 62,861
Surplus 25,780 13.277
88.641 76.138
$ 292287 $ 277637

Contingent labilities (Note 17)

Commitments (Note 18)

Bke accompanying notes

Signed on behalf of the Board: Mﬂ “IAAAMMAR Kgf‘&qhu M . E\}a ﬁgz,a%y«i

Chairperson Member
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND SURPLUS

For the Year Ended 31 March 2010 2009
(000°s) (000°s)
REVENUES
CMHC (Note 20} $ 60,052 $ 59,345
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador operating grant 56,570 35,668
Rent - 18,797 18,662
Land assemblies sales 10,759 6,818
Interest 5482 6,439
Cther income 852 355
Profit from land sales by municipalities 317 395
Gain on sale of rental properties 79 481
Gains on mortgages, loans and repossessions - 30
152,908 128,193
EXPENSES
Administrative expenses (Note 21) : 22,051 20,469
CMHC share of interest revenue 680 1,060
Community based housing operating subsidies 13,838 9,834
Grants to homeowners 22,332 20,930
Interest expense 2,429 2,390
Land assemblies costs (Note 7) 6,901 2,395
Losses on mortgages, loans and repossessions 55 -
Mortgage subsidies 611 850
Rental properties expenses (Note 22) 65,692 61,359
Rental properties written off 59 5
Rent supplement subsidies 8,787 4,362
140,405 123.654
Excess of revenues over expenses 12,503 4.539
Surplius, beginning of year 13,277 8.738
Surplus, end of year $ 25780 $ 13,277

See accompanying notes
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 31 March 2010 2009
(000°s) (000’s)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 12,503 $ 4,539
Add (deduct) non-cash items:
Mortgage subsidies 611 850
Losses (gains) on mortgages, loans and repossessions 58 30)
Amortization of rental properties (Note 22) 6,874 6,983
Amortization of community based housing 913 831
Amortization of Labrador Housing Programs 1,050 1,050
Write-off of rental properties 59 5
Gain on sale of rental properties (79) (481)
Amortization of capital assets 1,281 1,070
CMHC portion of non-cash items 262 2,803
Group health and life insurance retirement benefits (Note 11) 1,425 1,371
24,954 18,991
Net change in other operating items {2.805) (1.188)
22,149 17,803
Cash flows from imvesting activities:
Decrease in receivable from municipalities re: land transfers 56 131
Decrease in land assemblies 5,999 2,010
Advances of mortgages and loans (1,831) (1,663)
Principal recoveries of mortgages and loans 4,053 4,396
Proceeds from sale of rental properties 349 1,115
Investment in capital assets (3,449) (2,114)
Investment in rental properties (4,669) (274)
Labrador Housing Programs - (170)
508 3.431
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in deferred revenue 5,155 9,899
Decrease in capital replacement fund (401) (527)
Increase in mortgages, debentures, and similar indebtedness 1,521 -
Repayments of mortgages, debentures, and similar indebtedness (1,118) (1,071)
Repavments of CMHC investment in cost-shared programs (7.279) (10,524)
{2,113) (2.223)
Increase in cash 20,544 19,011
Cash, beginning of vear 40,633 21.622
Cash, end of year $  61.177 $ 40,633
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

Authority

The Newfoundland and Labrador Housing Corporation (the Corporation) operates under authority of the
Housing Corporation Act. The purpose of the Corporation is to provide cost-effective housing and related
programs for the benefit of the residents of the Province with priority given to those most in need. Its affairs
are governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.

1.

Significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared by the Corporation’s management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Outlined below are the significant accounting
policies followed.

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Mortgages and loans receivable

An allowance for mortgages and loans impairment is estimated based on the value of accounts
referred to a collection agency and the accounts with reported arrears balances. The security and
source of funding for the accounts that are in arrears are considered in this estimation.

Repossessed units

Repossessed units are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value based on appraised
values and the estimated recovery of cost through social housing rental programs.

Land assemblies

Land assemblies are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Items capitalized as the
cost of land assemblies include land acquisition costs, development costs, interest and other related
carrying charges.

Land assembly sales are recognized as earned. A portion of the sales revenue is deferred to cover
future anticipated costs relative to the land sold. The percentage of revenue deferred is equal to the
percentage of cost to complete on a project by project basis.

Rental properties

Rental properties are valued at the lower of cost less accumulated amortization and net recoverable
amount. Items capitalized as the cost of a project include land acquisition costs, development and
construction costs, interest and other related carrying charges. In instances where properties have
been transferred from Government departments, costs have been recorded at $1. Amortization is
calculated using the methods described below based on the expected useful lives of all assets as
follows:
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NEWFOUNDILAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2610

1. Significant accounting policies (cont.)

(d)

(e)

H

(g)

Rental properties (cont.)

Non-profit housing

- Capital cost Sinking fund, 25-50 years

- Renovation costs Sinking fund, 15 years
Market housing

- Capital cost 2% declining balance

- Renovation costs Straight line, 15 years

Capital assets

All capital assets are capitalized at cost at the time of acquisition. Amortization is calculated using
the methods described below based on the expected useful lives of all assets as follows:

Office buildings 2% declining balance
Furniture and office equipment  Straight line, 10 years
Maintenance tools and equipment Straight line, 10 years
Computer hardware and software Straight line, 4 years
Vehicles Straight line, 5 years

Severance pay

Severance pay is calculated based on years of service and current salary levels. Entitlement to
severance pay vests with employees after nine years of continuous service. The amount is payable
when employees cease employment with the Corporation unless an employee transfers to another
entity in the public service, in which case the liability is transferred with that employee to the other
entity.

Revenue recognition

Interest income is accounted for on the accrual basis for all mortgages and loans other than the
impaired portion of mortgages and loans. Recognition of interest in accordance with the terms of
the original loan agreement ceases when a loan becomes impaired. A loan is classified as impaired
when, in the opinion of management, there is reasonable doubt as to the ultimate collectability of a
portion of principal or interest. The impaired portion of loans may revert to accrual status only

when principal and interest payments have become fully current again, at which time any interest
will be recognized in that fiscal year.
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2610

1.  Significant accounting policies (cont.)

(2

(h)

®

Revenue recognition (cont.)

Revenue received for a future period is deferred until that future period and is reflected as deferred
revenue.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.

Financial instruments

The Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, due from the
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador — Labrador Housing Programs, mortgages and loans
receivable, receivable from municipalities re: land transfers, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, group health and life insurance retirement benefits, and mortgages, debentures and
similar indebtedness. These financial instruments are accounted for as follows:

Held-for-trading
The Corporation has designated cash as held-for-trading and is measured at fair value.

Loans and receivable

The Corporation has classified the following financial assets as loans and receivables: accounts
receivable, due from the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador — Labrador Housing Programs,
mortgages and loans receivable, and receivable from municipalities re: land transfers. These
assets are initially recognized at their fair value. Fair value is approximated by the instrument’s
initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties. Gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value are recognized in net income upon de-recognition or impairment. Given the short-term
nature of accounts receivable, due from the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador — Labrador
Housing Programs, and receivables from municipalities re: land transfers, their carrying values

equate to their current fair value. The current fair value of mortgages and loans receivable is set
out in Note 5.
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

(1) Financial instruments (cont.)
Other financial liabilities

The Corporation has classified the following as other financial liabilities: accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, group health and life insurance retirement benefits, and mortgages, debentures
and similar indebtedness. These liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value. Fair value is
approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties.

Given the short-term nature of accounts payable and accrued liabilities, their carrying value equate
their current fair value. The carrying value of the Corporation’s group health and life insurance
retirement benefits is based on actuarial valuations adjusted over time for the effect of changes in
assumptions and approximates its fair value. The current fair value of mortgages, debentures and
similar indebtedness is set out in Note 14,

2.  Accounts receivable

2010 2009

(000°s) (000%s)

CMHC $ 8170 $ 2,690
HST 1,210 1,369
Land assemblies - 380
Rents 95 224
Other 831 802
10,306 5,474

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 75 128
$ 10,231 $ 5346

3. Due from the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador - Labrader Housing Programs
In March 2000, the Province directed the Corporation to fund the renovation of existing dwellings and
construction of new dwellings in Northern Coastal Labrador. In March 2002, the Province directed the
Corporation to fund the construction of a personal care home in Mary's Harbour.
Under these initiatives, title to these dwellings is held by the homeowners with the Province repaying
the renovation and construction costs over a 15 year period. As at 31 March 2010 the amount due from
the Province was $2,291,000 (2009 - $3,341,000).

These projects are being amortized at $1,050,000 annually.

- 563 -



NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

4.

Inventory and prepaid expenses

2010 2009
(000’s) (000’s)
Inventory $ 355 $ 322
Prepaid expenses 3.556 3,096
$ 3911 $ 3418

Mortgages and loans receivable
2010 2009
(000°s) (000°s)
Provincial Home Repair Program ‘ $ 5977 $ 6,201
Residential Rehabilitation Assistance Program loans 2,704 3,985
Subsidized mortgages to homeowners 1,880 3,366
Other mortgages and loans 1.507 1,562
12,068 15,114
Less: allowance for impaired accounts 1,566 1,724
$ 10,502 $ 13.390

The allowance for impaired mortgages and loans relates primarily to the Residential Rehabilitation
Assistance Program loans portfolio.

Receivable from municipalities re: land transfers

In September 1998, the Province directed the Corporation to enter into agreements with municipalities
to transfer its banked and developed industrial and commercial land. The agreements will transfer these

lands to the municipalities under a mortgage arrangement and provide for a share of future land sales
revenue to the Corporation.

The receivable is valued at the lower of the carrying value of the land at the date of transfer and the
Corporation’s share of the net realizable value of the land as outlined in the agreement. The estimated
net realizable value is determined using management’s best estimates of future sales. Management
recognizes that changes in future conditions, such as market demand, assumed in making these estimates
are not predictable. Consequently, adjustments to the carrying value of the receivable from
municipalities re: land transfers are possible depending on the impact of any changes and management’s
best estimate of them.

As of 31 March 2010, twenty-one agreements have been completed for the transfer of lands to
municipalities at a carrying value of $1,448,000 (2009 - $1,504,000).
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2010

7. Land assemblies

2010 2009

(000°s) (000’s)

Land assemblies, beginning of year $ 7,321 $ 9,331
Cost incurred during the year:

Land acquisition and development 744 281

Interest, capitalized 158 104

8,223 9,716
Less: cost of earned sales recognized during year 6,901 2,395
Land assemblies. end of year $ 1322 $ 7321

In September 1998, the Province directed the Corporation to divest of the majority of its land holdings.
Land assemblies are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The estimated net realizable

value is determined using management’s best estimates of future sales and costs.

Management

recognizes that changes in future conditions, such as market demand, assumed in making these
estimates, are not predictable. Consequently, material adjustments to the carrying value of the asset are

possible depending upon the impact of any changes and management’s best estimate of them.

8. Rental properties

2010 2009
Accumulated Net Net
Cost Amortization  Book Value Book Value
(000°s) (000°s) (000°s) (000’s)
Non-profit housing
- Capital cost $ 254,834 $ 73,385 $ 181,449 $ 187,380
- Renovation costs 4,981 3,380 1,601 2,101
Market housing
- Capital cost 7,476 2,830 4,646 3,712
Affordable Housing Trust
- Construction costs 1,392 - 1,392 295
- Capital costs 942 - 942 -
- Other costs 11 - 11 -
Leased land 126 - 126 126
$ 269.762 $ 79.595 $ 190.167 $ 193.614
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

9. Capital assets

2010 2009
Accumulated Net Net
Cost Amortization Book Value Book Value
(000’s) (000°s) (000°s) (000’s)

Office buildings - capital cost $ 8,979 $ 2,592 $ 6,387 $ 4,941

- construction 2,276 - 2,276 1,651
Furniture and office equipment 317 114 203 76
Maintenance tools and equipment 86 4 82 -
Computer hardware and software 3,918 2,652 1,266 1,602
Vehicles 2.099 1.078 1,024 800
$ 17,675 $ 6437 $ 11,238 $§ 9.070

16. Deferred revenue

2010 2009

(0090°s) (000’s)

CMHC Affordable Housing Program $ 9,193 $ 8,185
CMHC Economic Stimulus Program 8,818 -
CMHC Social Housing Agreement 498 406
CMHC Provincial Home Repair Program 360 -
Sub-total CMHC Deferred Revenue 18,869 8,591
Affordable Housing Trust 8,447 14,005
Land Sales 400 -
Rentals 402 367
Capital cost — office building 1,300 1,300
$ 29418 $ 24.263

Deferred revenue CMHC relates to the unearned balance of funds from CMHC under the Social
Housing Agreement and the Affordable Housing, Economic Stimulus, and Provincial Home Repair

Programs.

Deferred revenue Affordable Housing Trust (AHT) relates to the unearned balance of the AHT Federal

Government funding
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

10.

11.

Deferred revenue {cont.)
Deferred land sales relates to future development costs to be funded from sales received to date.

Deferred revenue rentals consists of rental payments received by the Corporation in advance of the due
dates.

Deferred capital cost relates to a capital grant from the Province towards the construction of a new
office/maintenance building.

Group health and life insurance retirement benefits

All retired employees of the Corporation are eligible to participate in the group insurance plans. Under
the plans, the Corporation pays 50% of the total premium charged towards the benefits of both active
employees and retirees for life insurance and health benefits. As at 31 March 2010, the health plan
provided benefits to 161 retirees (2009 - 155) and the life insurance plan to 183 retirees (2009 - 178).

The actuarial extrapolation prepared by the Corporation’s actuary was based on a number of
assumptions about future events including an interest rate of 6%, health care cost trends, wage and
salary increases, termination rates, plan participation rates, utilization rates and mortality. The

assumptions used reflect the Corporation’s best estimates of expected long-term rates and short-term
forecasts.

Group health and life insurance retirement benefits liability

Details of the group health and life insurance retirement benefits liability are outlined in the table below:

Estimated
Accrued Unamortized Net Net
Benefit Experience Liability  Liability
Obligation Gains (Fosses) 2010 2009 Change
(000°s) (000°s) (000°s) (000°s) (000°s)

Group health retirement benefits $ 16,024 $ (2,838) $ 13,186 $11,851 $ 1,335

Group life insurance retirement
benefits 1,528 54 1,582 1.492 90

$ 17.552 $ (2.784) $ 14,768  $13.343 $1.425

There are no fund assets associated with these plans.
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 Mareh 2010

11.

12.

Group health and life insurance retirement benefits (cont.)

Group hezith and life insurance retirement benefits expense

In these financial statements group health and life insurance retirement benefits costs have been
determined as the cost of benefits accrued during the period. Interest on the liability has been accrued
for the same period.

The change in the liability for the current period is comprised of the following amounts:

Corporation’s Interest Corporation’s Current Period

Share of Expense Current Amortization
Current Period on the Period of Experience
Costs Liability Contributions Changes Change
(000°s) 000°s) (000°s) (000°s) (000°s)
Group health retirement benefits $ 335 $ 905 $ (253) $ 348 $1,335
Group life insurance retirement
benefits 21 86 (12) () 90
$ 356 $_991 $ _(265) $ 343 $ 1,425

Experience gains or losses

Experience gains or losses are amortized over the estimated average remaining service life of active
participants. The amortization amount will be included with retirement costs in the financial statements
commencing in the year subsequent to the year in which the experience gain or loss arose.

The unamortized experience loss at 31 March 2010 resulted from an increase in health premium rates
charged by the insurance provider.

Capital replacement fund

In accordance with program guidelines for non-profit and urban native housing projects, sponsor groups
are required to set aside funds for the replacement of major capital items. The funds are held on behalf
of the project sponsors and are released as eligible capital replacement expenditures are incurred.

Transactions relating to the capital replacement fund during the year are as follows:

2010 2009

(000°s) (000°s)

Balance, beginning of year $ 6,668 $ 7,195
Capital replacement expenditures (401) (527)

Balance, end of vear $_ 6,267 $ 6.668
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

13.

14.

Mortgage insurance fund

Upon signing the Canada - Newfoundland Social Housing Agreement, the Corporation assumed
liability for all losses and costs that may be incurred in respect of a portfolio of loans that are owned
and were previously insured by Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC). In return,
CMHC provided the Corporation with a $3,000,000 mortgage insurance fund as protection against
future losses. Losses on loans are deducted from the fund, while interest earnings were added to the
fund until 1 April 2003. The Corporation ceased accruing interest as of 1 April 2003.

2010 2009

(000’s) (000’s)

Balance, beginning of year ' $ 3,252 $ 3,252
Gains (losses) for the vear - -

Balance, end of vear $ 3.252 $ 3252

The fund covers a portfolio of Federal loans totalling $135,725,167. The majority of these loans relate
to either Social Housing projects that receive significant Federal/Provincial annual operating subsidies
or nursing home accommodations with Provincial Government guarantees. While an independent

actuarial valuation of the fund has not been carried out, the fund is considered adequate by the
Corporation’s management. '

Mortgages, debentures and similar indebtedness

2010 2009
(000°s) (000’s)
With fixed terms of repayment
CMHC fixed rate term debentures, at an interest
rate of 4.12% repayable in blended annual
installments of $2,215,848, with final due
dates ranging from March 2022 to January 2030 $ 24,777 $24374

Principal repayments for the next five years on the $24,777,000 of debt with fixed terms of repayment
are as follows:

(000’s)
2011 $ 1,224
2012 $ 1,275
2013 $ 1,328
2014 $ 1,383
2015 $ 1,441
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

15.

16.

17.

CMHC investment in cost-shared programs

2010 2009

(000°s) (000°s)

Non-profit rental housing $ 85,769 $ 87,018
Rural and native housing 23,236 27,916
Home repair assistance 1.565 2.644
$ 110570 $ 117,578

The principal and interest payments required to amortize CMHC’s investment in non-profit rental
housing and rural and native housing is funded entirely through the annual Federal grant paid by
CMHC, pursuant to the Canada - Newfoundland Social Housing Agreement signed in April 1997.

Repayment of CMHC’s investment in the home repair assistance programs has no fixed term and is
dependant upon future repayments of principal and interest on mortgages and loans.

Contributed capital - Province of Newfoundland and Labrador

Contributed capital represents accumulated capital grants of $62,861,000 made to the Corporation by the
Province. These grants were utilized by the Corporation to develop housing projects, land assemblies
and related programs for the benefit of the residents of the Province.

Contingent liabilities

(a) Claims

Claims have been filed against the Corporation for:

(i) General damages related to the enforcement of a Sales and Development Agreement for a
shopping mall complex.

(i) $100,000 relating to funds withheld from a contractor for deficiencies on houses constructed.

This claim was filed by the contractor against both the Corporation (the mortgagee) and the
homeowners of the houses.

(iii) Special damages related to an alleged breach of contract and/or negligence relating to the
sale of an apartment and commercial complex property.

The above claims have not progressed far enough to enable the formation of a definite opinion as
to their outcome. Therefore, the likelihood and the amount of loss to the Corporation is not
determinable at this time.
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2010

17. Contingent liabilities (cont.)

(b) Environmental issues

Possible environmental liabilities exist for the following:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Tn 1996, the Corporation learned that possible environmental liabilities exist with respect to
potential large quantities of fuel left in abandoned fuel storage facilities in the Stephenville
area. The Corporation has removed some of the underground tanks and fuel lines and has
undertaken some further study. To date, expenditures related to this work have totalled

$2,600,000. As well, based on the studies completed to date, further remediation is estimated
to cost $10,000,000.

Tn 1998, the Corporation learned that possible environmental liabilities exist with respect to
environmental contaminants including hydrocarbons and various heavy metals in the soil and
groundwater on 20 hectares of the total 102 hectares in the Paradise area. Title to this site
had been transferred to the Town of Paradise during 1998-99 as part of the Corporation’s
land divestiture program; however, the Corporation will be liable for any costs that must be
incurred to clean up the site. Information received from a study completed in January 2000
indicates that the estimated costs of undertaking site remediation based on the information to
date is in the order of $6,000,000.

In 1999, the Corporation learned of possible environmental liabilities relating to 17
underground fuel tanks in its St. John’s properties located at Buckmaster’s Circle. As a
result of an environmental study conducted in 2000, the cost of environmental remediation
related to this property is estimated at $1,000,000. To date, expenditures related to this work

have totalled $317,000. All 17 tanks have been removed and remediation has been
completed on 7 of the 17 sites.

In 2005, the Corporation learned of possible environmental liabilities relating to underground
fuel tanks in its St. John’s properties located on Cashin Avenue, Froude Avenue, Empire
Avenue and Hoyles Avenue. The cost of environmental remediation is estimated at
$1,400,000. It is currently estimated that there are 21 underground fuel tanks at these
properties. To date, expenditures related to this work have totalled approximately $190,000.
Removal and remediation has been completed on 9 of the 21 estimated sites.
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 Marxch 2010

17.

18.

19.

Contingent liabilities (cont.)

(v) In 2009, the Corporation learned of possible environmental liabilities relating to 7
underground fuel tanks in its St. John’s properties located at Pleasantville. The cost of
environmental remediation is estimated at $700,000.

(vi) In 2009, the Corporation learned of possible environmental liabilities relating to electrical
transformers containing polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) located around its: St. John’s
properties at Chalker Place. The cost of environmental remediation is estimated at $200,000.

(vii) In 2010, the Corporation learned of possible environmental liabilities relating to 43 fuel tanks
at its St. John’s properties in the Guy Street-Whiteway Street area. The cost of
environmental remediation is estimated at $1,290,000. To date, expenditures related to this
work have totalled approximately $39,000.

The Corporation’s ability to remediate these sites is dependent upon funding from the Province of
Newfoundiand and Labrador.

Commitments
The Corporation has commitments totalling $38,469,545 comprised of:

Q) Uncompleted purchase and construction contracts at year end of $10,398,983
(i)  Commitments under lending programs of $15,728,800
(i11)  Commitments under grant program of $12,341,762

Financial instrument risks

The Corporation, through its financial assets and liabilities, is exposed to various risks. The following
analysis provides a measurement of those risks at 31 March 2010:

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Corporation will incur a loss due to the failure by its debtors to meet
their contractual obligations. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Corporation to
credit risk consist of cash, accounts receivable, mortgages and loans receivable, and receivable
from municipalities re: land transfers. Any estimated impairment of mortgages and loans
receivable is provided for through an allowance for impaired accounts and no further credit risk
exists for these long-term receivables.
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

19. Financial instrument risks (cont.)

20.

(b)

(©

(d)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Corporation is not materially
exposed to foreign exchange risk as all financial instruments are denominated in Canadian dollars
and there was an immaterial amount of foreign currency-denominated accounts payable
transactions during the year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Corporation does not use derivative
instruments to reduce its exposure to interest rate risk. Interest rates on the majority of mortgages
and loans receivable and mortgages, debentures and similar indebtedness are fixed to maturity.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall

due. The Corporation maintains adequate levels of working capital to ensure all its obligations
can be met when they fall due.

Revenue from CMHC

CMHC’s share of program subsidies and administration costs are as follows:

2010 2009

(000°s) (000’s)

1997 Canada-Newfoundland Social Housing Agreement $ 49317 $ 50,398

Affordable Housing Program 1,855 4,705

Provincial Home Repair Program 3,826 4,240
Residential Rehabilitation Assistance Program 24) )]

Mortgages 7 9

Community Based Housing Stimulus Renovations 1,720 -

Public Rental Housing Stimulus Renovations 3.351 -

$ 60,052 $ 59345
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

Z1.

22.

23.

24.

Administrative expenses

2010 2009
(000’s) (000’s)
Advertising and promotion $ 222 $ 151
Computer system costs 1,825 1,787
General 765 805
Office equipment 120 96
Office supplies 214 172
Rent, heat, light, cleaning and maintenance 1,173 1,289
Salaries and employee benefits 16,686 15,125
Telephone and postage ' 455 426
Travel and vehicle expenses 591 618
$ 22,051 $ 20469

Rental properties expenses
2010 2009
(000°s) (000°s)
Amortization $ 6,874 $ 6,983
Bad debts 78 114
Heat, light and operating 10,016 10,461
Interest on debt 16,540 17,039
Municipal taxes 5,674 5,312
Repairs and maintenance 26,510 21.450
$ 65,692 $ 61,359

Pensions

Under the Housing Corporation Act, Corporation staff are subject to the Public Service Pensions Act.
Employee contributions are matched by the Corporation and remitted to the Province of Newfoundland
and Labrador Pooled Pension Fund from which pensions will be paid to employees when they retire.
The Corporation’s share of pension contributions for 2010 was $1,288,774 (2009 - $1,179,363).

Self-insurance

With the exception of certain high-risk projects, the Corporation follows the policy of self-insuring its
rental properties for property damage such as fire, water and vandalism. The costs of these repairs are

charged to rental properties expenses.
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

25,

26.

Province of Newfoundland and Labrador contribution
The Province of Newfoundland and Labrador contributed approximately 37% (2009 — 28%) of the
Corporation’s total revenues. The contribution enables the Corporation to carry out its overall mandate

and to meet its fiscal challenges.

The Corporation’s ability to continue to fulfill its mandate is dependent upon the decisions of the
Province of Newfoundland and Labrador.

Income taxes

The Corporation is a Crown entity of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and as such is not
subject to Provincial or Federal income taxes.
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Newfoundland and Labrador Immigrant Investor Fund Limited
St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador

I have audited the balance sheet of the Newfoundland and Labrador Immigrant Investor Fund Limited as at
31 March 2010 and the statements of revenues, expenses and surplus, and cash flows for the year then ended,
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at 31 March 2010 and the tesults of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with Canadian gejgil)ydécepted accounting principles.

‘ 4
N/

/ ‘ UJ/ \\, i Y LA ‘%\‘.}

{ ' b /

}QmﬁL. NOSEWORTHY, CA

Auditor General

St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador
13 May 2010
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR IMMIGRANT INVESTOR FUND LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

31 March 2010 2009

ASSETS

Current

Cash $ 198,723,633 $ 147,108,034

Interest receivable 74.546 74,950
198,798,179 147,182,984

Deferred financing costs (Note 2) 8.428.074 7.049.554

$ 207.226.253

$ 154232538

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 3,390 $ 3,500
Obligations to investors (Note 3) 26,050,189 -
26,053,579 3,500
Obligations to investors (Note 3) 178,179,488 149,599,320
204,233,067 149,602,820
Shareholder’s equity
Share capital (Note 4)
Authorized
100 common shares of no par value
Issued
3 shares - -
Surplus 2.993.186 4,629,718
$ 207,226,253 $ 154232538

Signed on behalf of the Board:

See accompanying notes

WM -

L/

Chmrperson

Member



NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR IMMIGRANT INVESTOR FUND LIMITED

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND SURPLUS

For the Year Ended 31 March 2010 2009
REVENUES
Interest $ 790.774 $ 3225071
EXPENSES
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2,421,618 1,718,382
Audit fees 3,280 3,475
Bank charges 6 41
Miscellaneous 385 -
Safekeeping fees 2,017 7.517
2.427.306 1.729.415
Excess of (expenses over revenues) revenues over expenses (1,636,532) 1,495,656
Surplus, beginning of vear 4.629.718 3.134,062
Surplus, end of vear $ 2.993.186 $ 4629718
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR IMMIGRANT INVESTOR FUND LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 31 March 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities
Excess of (expenses over revenues) revenues over expenses $ (1,636,532) $ 1,495,656
Items not affecting cash
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2,421,618 1,718,382
Changes in non-cash working capital
Interest receivable 404 (62,131)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (110) -
785,380 3,151,907
Cash flows from financing activities
Deferred financing charges (3,800,138) (3,590,487)
Amounts received from investors 54,790,901 51,788,192
Refund to investors (160.544) (121,380)
50.830,.219 48.076.325
Increase in cash 51,615,599 51,228,232
Cash, beginning of vear 147,108.034 95,879.802

Cash, end of vear

$ 198.723.633

$ 147.108.034
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR IMMIGRANT INVESTOR FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
21 March 2010

Authority

Newfoundland and Labrador Immigrant Investor Fund Limited (the Corporation), was incorporated on
28 April 2005 under the Corporations Act of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador (the Province). All
shares of the Corporation are held by the Minister of Innovation, Trade and Rural Development on behalf of
the Province. Its affairs are governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council.

The purpose of the Corporation is to receive, administer and invest funds received from Citizenship and
Immigration Canada (CIC) under its Business Immigration Program. Section 92(f) of the Immigration and
Refugee Protection Regulations to the Immigration and Refugee Protection Act requires that during the
allocation period of five years, the provincial allocation must be used for the purpose of creating or continuing
employment in Canada to foster the development of a strong and viable economy.

In April 2005 the Provincial Cabinet instructed the Board of Directors to direct the investment activities of the
Corporation and refer projects to Cabinet for approval. The Provincial Cabinet also directed that all

recommended investments are subject to a thorough financial and business analysis by the sponsoring
department.

1. Significant accounting policies
These financial statements have been prepared by the Corporation’s management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. COutlined below are the significant accounting
policies followed.

(a) Deferred financing costs

Deferred financing costs are amortized, on a straight line basis, over the five year period during
which the funds are available to the Corporation.

(b) Obligations to investors
An obligation to an investor is recognized upon receipt of funds from CIC.
2. Deferred financing costs
Deferred financing costs of $8,428,074 (2009 - $7,049,554) consist of a seven percent commission
paid to CIC approved financial institutions which market the program and assist investors in the
administration of their investments. The marketing and financing fee was paid in connection with

5,144 of the 5,190 immigrant investors at 31 March 2010 (3,703 of the 3,741 immigrant investors at
31 March 2009).
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR IMMIGRANT INVESTOR FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010 ‘

3.

Obligations to investors

One of the conditions for the issuance of a visa to immigrants under the Citizenship and Immigration
Canada (CIC), Business Immigration Program, is that they must invest $400,000 in Canada for a period
of five years. The amount of the investment is allocated to the participating provinces on the first day of
the second month following the month payment is received from the investor. $200,000 of the $400,000
is divided equally among the participating provinces while the remaining $200,000 is allocated on the
basis of each participating province’s gross domestic product as a percentage of the total gross domestic
product of all participating provinces. As at 31 March 2010, the Newfoundland and Labrador allocation
of funds had been received from 5,190 investors (2009 — 3,741 investors).

These obligations to investors are secured by a non-transferable zero interest promissory note issued by
CIC, as agent for the Corporation, and the guarantee of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador. The
guarantee is to CIC, as agent for the Corporation, who will repay investors. The promissory notes are
repayable without interest, in full, five years from the date the funds were allocated to the Province or
within 90 days after the receipt of a written request by the investor for repayment of the funds provided
that such a request for repayment has been received by the agent before a visa has been issued to the
investor. As at 31 March 2010, 47 of the 5,190 investors had not received a permanent resident visa
(2009 - 24 of 3,741 investors).

Obligations to investors at 31 March 2010 totalled $204,229,677 (2009 - $149,599,320). Scheduled

investment repayment dates are as follows:

31 May 2010 $ 2,504,060
30 June 2010 2,465,536
31 July 2010 3,351,588
31 August 2010 2,889,300
30 September 2010 3,197,492
31 October 2010 2,850,776
30 November 2010 1,964,724
31 December 2010 1,851,312
31 January 2011 1,581,329
28 February 2011 1,658,467
31 March 2011 1,735,605
30 April 2011 2,622,692
31 May 2011 1,581,329
30 June 2011 1,427,053
31 July 2011 1,889,881
31 August 2011 1,928,450
30 September 2011 1,967,019
31 October 2011 1,928,450
30 November 2011 2,082,726
31 December 2011 1,321,138
31 January 2012 815,997
29 February 2012 1,049,139
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR IMMIGRANT INVESTOR FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2010

3.

Obligations to investors (cont.)

31 March 2012 1,321,138
30 April 2012 1,631,994
31 May 2012 2,214,849
30 June 2012 3,263,988
31 July 2012 4,934,839
31 August 2012 4,857,125
30 September 2012 6,799,975
31 October 2012 5,466,461
30 November 2012 5,876,337
31 December 2012 5,648,722
31 January 2013 2,731,759
28 February 2013 4,305,993
31 March 2013 4,215,265
30 April 2013 3,978,895
31 May 2013 3,821,314
30 June 2013 4,294,055
31 July 2013 3,252,776
31 August 2013 7,194,396
30 September 2013 7,542,528
31 October 2013 6,312,768
30 November 2013 4,632,096
31 December 2013 4,420,624
31 January 2014 1,876,680
28 February 2014 2,710,760
31 March 2014 1,546,512
30 April 2014 2,960,984
31 May 2014 2,038,584
30 June 2014 3,057,876
31 Jjuly 2014 6,756,048
31 August 2014 8,048,872
30 September 2014 6,186,048
31 October 2014 6,528,604
30 November 2014 4,837,664
31 December 2014 4,003,816
31 January 2015 2,834,560
28 February 2015 3,472,336
31 March 2015 3,988,373
Total 204,229,677
Less: current portion 26,050,189
Obligation to investors: long-term $ 178,179,488
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NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR IMMIGRANT INVESTOR FUND LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2010

4. Share capital

The Minister of Innovation, Trade and Rural Development holds 100% of the issued common shares of
the Corporation on behalf of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador.

5. Related party transactions

For administrative purposes the Corporation is managed by the Department of Innovation, Trade and
Rural Development and short-term investments for cash management purposes are made by the

- Department of Finance. Expenses related to salaries, accommodations and administration are incurred
directly by the departments and no provision is made in these financial statements for these expenses. The
amount of these expenses is not material to these financial statements,

6. TFinancial instraments

The Corporation’s financial instruments recognized on the balance sheet consist of cash, interest
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and obligations to investors. The purpose of the
Corporation is to receive capital from immigrant investors and invest the funds for the purpose of
creating and continuing employment in Canada to foster the development of a strong viable economy.
At 31 March 2010, the Corporation had not invested any of the funds received from immigrant investors
in projects.

Fair value

The carrying value of the interest receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate
their fair value due to the relatively short periods to maturity of the instruments. Due to the fact that the
obligations to investors are guaranteed by the Province and the Corporation pays no interest, the face value
of the obligations to investors is their fair value.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk reflects the risk that the Corporation’s earnings will decline due to fluctuation in
interest rates. The Corporation’s cash is held in a bank account bearing an interest rate based on prime.
There 1s no interest to be paid to investors and therefore, there is no interest rate risk.

7. Economic dependence
As aresult of its reliance on actions by Citizenship and Immigration Canada and investment decisions by

the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador, the Corporation’s ability to continue viable operations is
dependent on the actions of both entities.

8. Income taxes

The Corporation is a Crown entity of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and as such is not
subject to Provincial or Federal income taxes.
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Financial statements of

NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR
LIQUOR CORPORATION

April 3,2010
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Newfoundland Labrador Liquor Corporation

We have audited the balance sheet of the Newfoundland Labrador Liquor Corporation
(“the Corporation™) as at April 3, 2010 and the statement of earnings, retained earnings
and cash flows for the 52- week period then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation as at April 3, 2010 and the results of its operations
and 1ts cash flows for the fiscal period then ended in accordance with Canadian

generally accepted accounting principles.
W g ;am;g/ AL F
St. John’s, Canada,

May 19, 2010. Chartered Accountants
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Balance Sheet

(in thousands)

April 3, 2010 April 4, 2009
(restated - note 4)
ASSETS $ b
CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents 27,500 20,679
Accounts receivable 5,885 4,461
Beer commissions receivable 5,260 5,598
Inventories (Note 6) 31,770 34,636
Prepaid expenses 2,607 1,959
73,122 67,333
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 7) 15,133 15,426
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Note 8) 2,880 2,808
91,135 85,567
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 24,544 25,973
Accrued vacation pay 1,912 1,704
26,456 27,677
ACCRUED SEVERANCE PAY 2,364 2,513
28,820 30,190
EQUITY
RETAINED EARNINGS 62,315 55,377
91,135 85,567

ON B?JF?ALF OF THE BOARD:

i
e [
A “;/.7 :Aﬁ .

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Ry i
) "E{/»t“"r:}' ;Lﬁzﬁ ﬁ?‘\ 4"5;":"/!}{,}%’.#‘f {f-:lg o
“DIRECTOR
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Statement of Earnings
(in thousands)

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
April 3, 2010 April 4, 2009
$ $
SALES 198,529 182,916
COST OF GOODS SOLD 83,710 76,944
GROSS PROFIT 114,819 105,972
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING
EXPENSES (Note 9) 46,037 42,457
EARNINGS FROM OPERATIONS 68,782 63,515
OTHER INCOME
Commission revenue on sale of beer 59,756 57,361
Interest 68 622
Miscellaneous 2,332 1,670
62,156 59,653
NET EARNINGS 130,538 123,168
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Statement of Retained Earnings
(in thousands)

52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended
April 3, 2010 April 4, 2009
$ $
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 55,377 50,209
NET EARNINGS 130,938 123,168
186,318 173,377

PAYMENTS TO THE PROVINCE OF NEWFOUNDILAND
LABRADOR (124,000) (118,000)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR 62,315 55,377
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Statement of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

April 3, 2010 April 4, 2009
$ $
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings 130,938 123,168
Adjustments for:
Amortization 4,026 3,425
Accrual for vacation pay 208 303
Accrual for severance pay (149) 85
Net change in non-cash operating working capital (397) 763
134,626 127,744
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of intangible assets (1,159) (1,701)
Purchase of capital assets (2,646) (3,340)
(3,805) (5,041)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments to the Province of Newfoundland Labrador (124,600) (118,000)
Repayment of obligation under capital lease - (52)
(124,000) (118,052)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,821 4,651
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 20,675 16,028
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD 27,500 20,679
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 3, 2010 (tabular amounts in thousands)

1.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The Newfoundland Labrador Liquor Corporation (“the Corporation) is & Provincial Crown Corporation
responsible for managing the importation, sale and distribution of beverage alcohol throughout
Newfoundland and Labrador.

FISCAL PERIOD-END

The fiscal period of the Corporation ends on the first Saturday of April. As a result, the
Corporation’s fiscal period is usually 52 weeks in duration but includes a 53rd week every 5 to 6

years. The fiscal periods ended April 3, 2010 and April 4, 2009 contained 52 weeks.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles and reflect the following significant accounting policies:

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when goods have been sold and all contractual obligations have been met and
collection is reasonably assured,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term deposits with original maturities of twelve months
or less.

Inventories
Inventory is carried at the lower of average cost and net realizable value,
Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is recorded over the expected useful life of the capital
assets on a straight-line basis as follows:

Leasehold improvements 1 to 20 years
Buildings 20 years

Office furniture and equipment 5 years and 10 years
Plant and warehouse equipment 5 years

Store equipment and fixtures 5 years

Motor vehicles 3 years
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 3, 2010 (tabular amounts in thousands)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of a trademark and computer software assets not considered integral to the
operation of the related hardware. The trademark is recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line

basis over a ten-year period. Computer software is recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line
basis over a five-year period.

Severance pay

A liability for severance pay is recorded in the accounts for all employees who have a vested right to
receive such payment.

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are classified into one of five categories: held-for-trading, held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or other financial liabilities. All
financial instruments and derivatives are initially recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. In
subsequent periods, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and other financial liabilities
are measured at amortized cost; held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value and changes in fair value are recognized in net earnings, and available-for-sale financial
instruments are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive
income (loss) until the instrument is derecognized or impaired. All derivative instruments, including
embedded derivatives, are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value unless they qualify for the
normal sale, normal purchase exemption. All changes in their fair value are recorded in earnings
unless cash flow hedge accounting is used, in which case changes in fair value are recorded in other
comprehensive income (loss).

The Corporation classifies its financial assets and liabilities as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents are classified as held-for-trading financial assets. These assets are
measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in earnings.

Accounts receivable and beer commissions receivable are classified as loans and receivables and are
measured at amortized cost, which is generally the amount on initial recognition.

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and accrued vacation pay are classified as other financial
liabilities and are measured at amortized cost, which is generally the amount on initial recognition,

Use of estimates

The preparation of the Corporation’s financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 3, 2010 (tabular amounts in thousands)

4.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Effective April 5, 2009, the Corporation adopted the recommendations of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountant’s (“CICA”™) Handbook Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets. The
new standard provides guidance on the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
goodwill and intangible assets. The standard requires that intangible assets to be segregated,
presented separately on the balance sheet and amortized over their estimated useful lives. Intangible
assets of the Corporation include a trademark and computer software and are amortized on a strai ght-
line basis. The trademark is fully amortized while the computer software is amortized over five years.
For the period ended April 3, 2010, this has resulted in the recognition of intangible assets, previously
included in capital assets, in the amount of $6.3 million (2009 - $5.4 million) net of accumulated
amortization of $3.7 million (2009 - $2.6 million). Amortization of $1.1 million (2009 - $0.7) is
included in administrative and operating expenses for the period,

FUTURE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

In October 2009, the Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) issued a third and final Omnibus
Exposure Draft confirming that publicly accountable enterprises in Canada will be required to apply
[FRS, in full and without modification, for period-ends beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The
Corporation’s expected IFRS transition date of April 3, 2011 will require the restatement, for
comparative purposes, of amounts reported on the Corporation’s opening IFRS balance sheet as at
April 4, 2010 and amounts reported by the Corporation for the period ended April 2, 2011.

In July 2009, CICA4 Handbook Section 1506, Accounting Changes, was modified such that it does not
apply to changes in accounting policies upon the complete replacement of an entity’s primary basis of
accounting. The requirement for all publicly accountable enterprises in Canada to apply IFRS,
beginning for period- ends ending on or after January 1, 2011, represents a complete replacement of
the Corporation’s primary basis of accounting. CICA Handbook Section 1506, therefore, does not
apply to the adoption of IFRS,

INVENTORIES

Aprii 3, 2010 April 4, 2009

$ $

Head office 15,973 15,894
Branch stores 9,915 10,065
Stock in transit 4,930 7,254
Raw materials 952 1,423
31,770 34,636

The total value of inventory expensed to cost of goods for the period ended April 3, 2010 amounted to
$80.7 million (2009 - $74.9 million).
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 3, 2010 (tabular amounts in thousands)

7. CAPITAL ASSETS

April 3,2010

Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

b $ 5

Land 1,115 - 1,115
Leasehold improvements 15,649 8,338 7311
Buildings 5,903 3,255 2,648
Office furniture and equipment 4,418 2,928 1,490
Plant and warehouse equipment 3,914 2,517 1,397
Store equipment and fixtures 3,762 2,625 1,137
Motor vehicles 77 42 35
34,838 19,705 15,133

April 4, 2009 (restated - note 4)

Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

h) $ h)

Land 1,115 - 1,118
Leasehold improvements 14,127 7,121 7,006
Buildings 5,837 3,050 2,787
Office furniture and equipment 4,028 2,507 1,521
Plant and warehouse equipment 3,730 1,914 1,816
Store equipment and fixtures 3,403 2,244 1,159
Motor vehicles 48 26 22
32,288 16,862 15,426

During the period, the Corporation acquired capital assets in the amount of $3.8 million (2009 - $5.0
million).
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 3, 2010 (tabular amounts in thousands)

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

April 3, 2010
Accumulated  Net book
Cost amortization value
$ 5 S
Computer software 6,524 3,644 2,880
Trademark 203 203 -
6,727 3,847 2,880
April 4, 2009 (restated - note 4)
Accomulated  Net book
Cost amortization value
) $ $
Computer software 5,368 2,562 2,806
Trademark 203 201 2
5,571 2,763 2,808
9, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES
April 3, 2010 April 4, 2009
$ 3
Salaries and employee benefits 24,916 22,797
Express store commissions and expenses 4,845 4,887
Amortization 4,026 3,425
Rent and municipal taxes 2,448 1,979
Marketing 1,987 1,707
Interest, bank and payment card charges 1,583 1,416
Other 6,232 6,246
46,037 42,457
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 3, 2010 (tabular amounts in thousands)

1¢.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Market risk - foreign currency exposure

The Corporation purchases beverage alcohol internationally and is therefore exposed to market risks
related to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. Such exposure arises from purchases of
beverage alcohol in currencies other than the Canadian dollar. Approximately 3% of the
Corporation’s purchases are denominated in currencies other than the Canadian dollar. To perform a
sensitivity analysis, the Corporation assesses the risk of loss in fair values due to the impact of
hypothetical changes in foreign currency exchange rates on monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the Canadian dollar. The Corporation’s primary exposures to
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations are in European Euro, U.S dollar, Australian dollar, UK
pound sterling and New Zealand dollar, For the 52 weeks ended April 3, 2010, the potential decrease
or increase in earnings from a hypothetical instantaneous 10% increase or decrease in the April 3,
2010 quoted foreign currency spot rates applied to the above currency denominated monetary assets
and liabilities included in the April 3, 2010 balance sheet would have been approximately $0.02
million. To mitigate the potential risk with respect to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, the
Corporation periodically adjusts the landed cost of its products to account for changing foreign
currency exchange rates. The Corporation’s retail prices are calculated in reference to landed cost.

Credit risk

The Corporation is exposed to credit risk with respect to accounts receivable from customers. The
Corporation provides products to a large customer base, which minimizes the concentration of credit
risk. There were no single customers that accounted for 10% or more of the Corporation’s accounts
receivable at April 3, 2010 (2009 - one customer accounted for more than 10%). The Corporation
has credit evaluation, approval and monitoring processes intended to mitigate potential credit risks,
and utilizes internal and third-party collections processes for overdue accounts. Customers with
contracts related to the Corporation’s manufacturing operation are required to provide adequate
security for outstanding credit balances. Accounts receivable balances related to Liquor Express
Store operations are subject to General Security Agreements. The Corporation also maintains
provisions for potential credit losses that are assessed on an ongoing basis.

Liquidity risk

The Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk with respect to its contractual obli gations and financial
liabilities. The Corporation manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents,
The Corporation believes that cash and cash equivalents on hand and future cash flows generated by
operations will be adequate to meet its financial obligations. All of the Corporation’s financial
liabilities are due within one year.
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NEWFOUNDLAND LABRADOR LIQUOR CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements
April 3, 2010 (tabular amounts in thousands)

11.

12,

13.

Fair values

Fair value estimates are made as of a specific point in time, using available information about the
financial instruments and current market conditions. The estimates are subjective in nature and
involve uncertainties and judgment. The carrying values of financial instruments included in current
assets and current liabilities on the balance sheet approximate their fair values, reflecting the short-
term maturity and normal trade credit terms of these instruments.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has entered into rental leases covering retail outlets. Annual lease obligations for the
next five years are as follows:

h

2010 1,927
2011 1,799
2012 1,523
2013 1,187
2014 1,084
7,520

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Corporation is leasing office and warehouse space in St. John’s from the Department of Works,
Services and Transportation. These leases are rent-free; however, all operating, leasehold and
mainienance costs related to the buildings are the responsibility of the Corporation.

PENSIONS

The Corporation and its employees are subject to the Public Service Pensions Act effective June 26,
1973. Pension contributions deducted from employees’ salaries are matched by the Corporation and
then remitted to the Province of Newfoundland Labrador Pooled Pension Fund from which pensions will

be paid to employees when they retire. The Corporation’s share of pension expense for the year
amounted to §1.5 million (2009 - $1.3 million).
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NEWFOUNDLAND HARDWOODS LIMITED
Auditor’s Report
Financial Statements
Year ended March 31, 2010
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Newfoundland Hardwoods Limited:

| have audited the balance sheet of Newfoundland Hardwoods
Limited as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of income and retained
earnings and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the company's management. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that | ptan and perform
an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

in my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the company as at March 31, 2010
and the results of its operations and the cash flows jer the year then ended in

A b A

C AR{(ER%ACCOUNTANT
Clarenville, Newfoundland \ /J
June 02, 2010 e

accordance with Canadian generally accepted accourting @:’inciples.
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NEWFOUNDLAND HARDWOODS LIMITED
Balance Sheet
March 31, 2010

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and term deposits

Total current assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Eguity

Current liabilities:
Payables and accruals

Total current liabilities

Contingent losses (Note 2)
Commitments (Note 3)

Shareholders’ equity:
Comman shares of no par value:
Authorized an unlimited number; issued and
fully paid at stated value, 253 shares
Retained earnings, per accompanying statement

Total shareholders’ equity

~_ See Accompanying Notes

Approved: e Director

i "“;@é AL Director

N
Q
-
o

$ 119,190
$ 119.190

$ 1.500
1,500

25,300
92,390

117,690

$ 119,190

25,300
94,058
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NEWFOUNDLAND HARDWOODS LIMITED
Statement of Income and Retained Earnings
Year ended March 31, 2010

Revenue
Administrative expenses:
Bank charges

Professional and consulting fees
Licences and fees

Operating loss
Interest income

Net loss
Retained earnings, beginning of year

Retained earnings, end of year

18
1,650
1.668

(1,668)

(1,668)
94,058

$ 92,390

(1,940)

15

(1,925)
95,983

94,058

=——5.._
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NEWFOUNDLAND HARDWOODS LIMITED
Statement of Cash Fiows
Year ended March 31, 2010

Cash provided by operating activities:
Net loss

Changes in non-cash working capital balances:
Harmonized sales tax receivable

Decrease in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

2010

$ (1,668)

(1,668)
120,858

$119,190

2009

(1,925)

487
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NEWFOUNDLAND HARDWOQODS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

1. Divestiture:

During the 1996 fiscal year the company sold the property and equipment and inventory relating to its

wood preservation and asphalt manufacturing operations. The Company has consequently ceased
commercial operations.

2. Contingent losses:
Environmental concerns:

The Government of Newfoundland and Labrador, through an environmental indemnity, has released
the current owner of any and all present and future liabilities which may result from the presence,
release, loss, discharge, leakage or spillage of hazardous material on, at or from the properties
formerly owned and operated by Newfoundland Hardwoods Limited up to the date of the said
agreements.

3. Commitments:
The company had committed to the dismantling and removal of five surplus storage tanks from the

present location. As of the balance sheet date, four of these tanks have been removed and the costs of
such have been reflected in these financial statements.
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NEWFOUNDLAND INTERNATIONAL STUDENT
EDUCATION PROGRAM INC.
REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
MANAGEMENT CONSULTANT

BYRON D. SMITH, B. Comm., C.FE., C.A.

Main Office:
P 0. Box 610
100 Conception Bay Highway
Spaniard's Bay, NL
ADA 3X0

Telephone: (709) 786-1232
Toll Free: 1-877-786-1232
Facsimile: (709) 786-1230
E-mail: byron@byronsmithca.com
Website: byronsrnithca.com

Branch Office:
46 Powell Drive
Carbonear, NL
ATY 1A5
Telephone: (709} 556-2211

Simply Accounting
Solution Provider

Business Vision
Authorized Training
and
Support Organization

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board Members of;
Newfoundland International Student Education Program Inc.

I have audited the balance sheet of the Newfoundland International Student Education
Program Inc. as at June 30, 2009 and the statement of revenue, expenses and
accumulated surplus for the year then ended. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the corporations management. My responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on my audit. .

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that | plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts~and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit aiso includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Newfoundland International Student Education Program Inc. as at

June 30, 2009 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

{ Sk
Septernber 25, 2009 e T
Spaniard's Bay, NL CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
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Newfoundland !nternational Student Education Program inc.

Balance Sheet
As At June 30,

- 609 -

2009 2008
Assets
Due from related party (Note 2) $ 678,853 $ 692,604
- Accounts receivable 41,007
Prepaid expenses 6,750
$__678.853 $__740.361
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 12,000 $ 53,200
Deferred revenue (Nate 3) __ 53880
12,000 107,090
Equity
Contributed surplus 11,856 11,856
Accumulated surplus 654,997 _ 621415
__666.853 633.271
$__678,853 $__740361
<)
On Behalf of the Board: ray, /Y Vi
P i RO Treasurer
- -~ 7 7
/



Newfoundland international Student Education Program Inc.

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Accumulated Surplus
For the Year Ended June 30

2008 2008
Revenue
Student fees $ 577,998 $ 578,985
Memorial University of Newfoundland grant 21,295
.. 577,998 600,280
Expenses
Agency fees 37,230
Home stay fees 207,407 205,792
Coordinator fees 28,230 27,375
Insurance 18,877 22,291
Operating expense 15,796 25,636
Travel 30,548 77,829
Professional fees 16,281 4,129
School fees 85,650 95,150
Salary and benefits 141,627 122,731
544,416 ...5618.163
Surplus (Deficit) for the year 3 33.682 $___(17,883)
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of the year $ 621415 $ 639,298
Surplus (Deficit) for the year 33,582 (17.883)
Accumulated Surplus, end of the year $___654,997 $___ 621415
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Newfoundland international Student Education Program Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Nature of Operations

The Corporation was incorporated under the laws of Newfoundland and Labrador on May 6, 2003

The Corporation is established for educational purposes to recruit, assist, contract with, and monitor
international students in the Intermediate and Secondary schools that fall under the responsibility of the

Eastern School District. The Corporation is a non-profit organization and is exempt from income taxes in
accordance with saction 149(1)(g) of the Income Tax Act,

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue

Revenue is recognized when services are provided. Grants and subsidies are also recorded on the
accrual basis,

Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting periods. Actual
resuits could differ from those estimates. '

Basis of presentation
The Corporation follows the accrual basis of accounting.

2. Due from Related Party

The Corporation does not have a bank account. All cash and cash equivalents are held by a related
party "Eastern School District” in trust.

3. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of student fees coliected in the current fiscal year for which the service will be

provided in the following fiscal year. These amounts are deferred and included in revenue when the
related expenditures have been incurred.

4. Going Concern

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the
realization of assets and payment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. However the company
has been requested by the Minister of Education for the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador: to
wind up its operations effective June 30, 2009. Due to the current nature of the corporation's assets and
liabilities, these can be liguidated in the ordinary course of business at full value on or before June 20,
2009. The Corporation was not wound up as at September 25, 2009 due to committments made to
existing students and management estimates that the corporation will be wound up by June 30, 2010.
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Y Grant Thornton

Consolidated Financial Statements
Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises Limited

March 31, 2010
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Grant Thornton

Auditors’ report

Grant Thornton LLP
187 Kenmount Road
SL. John's, NL

AiB 3P8

T (709) 722-6960
F (709) 722-7892
www.GrantThornton.ca

To the Shareholders of
Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises Limited

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises
Limited at March 31, 2010 and the consolidated statements of loss and deficit and cash
flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the company as at March 31, 2010 and the results of

its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles.

gwm LLP

St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador

June 4, 2010 Chartered Accountants

- 614 -



Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises Limited

Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit

Year Ended March 31 2010 2009
Revenue

Recoveries and sundry $ 7 3 1,437
Expenses

Interest 61 83

Orher costs 17,924 5,345

17,985 5,428

Net loss $ (17,968) $ (3,991)

Deficit, beginning of year
Net loss

Deficit, end of year

$ (90,750,133)

(17,968)

$ (90,746,142)

(3.991)

$ (90,768,101)

$ (90,750,133)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises Limited
Consohidated Balance Sheet

March 31 2010 2009
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 47,515 $ 67,783
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals $ 12616 3 14916
Shareholders' Equity
Capital stock (Note 3) 3,000 3,000
Contributed surplus (Note 4) 90,800,000 90,800,000
Deficit (90.768.101)  (90.750,133)
34,899 52.867
$ 47515 $ 67783
Contingency (Note 5)
On behalf of the Board
}/ ¥ o 7 e
Director / W vli;"ﬁﬁ" Director
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Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended March 31 2010 2009

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Operating
Net loss $  (17,968) $ (3,991)
Change‘in non-cash operating
working capital (2,300) (627)
(20,268) (4,618)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (20,268) (4,618)
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 67,783 72,401
End of year $ 47,515 % 67,783

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

L Operations

The Company ceased active operations on January 1, 1998.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. Significant accounting policies are set out below.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises
Limited, its wholly owned subsidiaries Marystown Shipyard Limited and Vinland Industries
Limited, and Vinland Industries, a Limited Partnership.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and balances with banks, net of any overdrafts.
Bank borrowings are considered to be financing activities.

3. Capital stock 2010 2009
Authorized

An unlimited number of common shares of no par value
Issued

3 shares $ 3,000 $ 3,000
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Newfoundland Ocean Enterprises Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

4. Contrnibuted surplus

In 2005, the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador advanced funds to the Company in
the amount of $5,400,000 to retire the operating loan.

In 1999, the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador advanced funds to the Company in
the amount of $85,400,000 to retire the bankers' acceptances and certain other debt.

5. Contingency

The Company is a party to an agreement dated March 27, 2002 assigning an Environmental
Indemnity Agreement (the “ Agreement”) effective December 31, 1997 between the
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador, Friede Goldman Marystown Limited and the
Company to Peter Kiewitt Sons Co. Ltd.

On May 15, 2009 the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador received notice from
Kiewitt Offshore Services of a potential claim under the Agreement concerning the shipyard
facilities. The claim was amended by virtue of a second notice dated December 21, 2009.

The claim was considered by the Board in 2009. Funds were committed to hire the necessary
Environmental Consultant and the Province was advised of the claim pursuant to the
Environmental Indemnity Agreement. The Province has reviewed the Consultant’s report and
the recommendations with respect to remediation. Funding has been allocated in the Province’s
2010/ 11 budget under the Department of Innovation Trade and Rural Development and
direction has been provided to proceed with the remediation.

6. Financial instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when they

differ from the carrying amounts. Where amounts receivable and payable are subject to normal
credit terms, their carrying amount is used as an approximation of their fair values.
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2009
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholder
Newvest Realty Corporation

1 have audited the balance sheet of Newvest Realty Corporation as at 31 December 2009 and the statements
of income and retained earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Corporation’s management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
staternent presentation.

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all materials respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at 31 December 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

_—
e
i
s

i

"JOHN L. NOSEWORTHY, CA
Auditor General

St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador
11 May 2010
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEET
31 December 2009 2008
(000°s) (000’s)
ASSETS
Income producing properties (Note 3) $ 180,712 § 177,149
Deferred charges (Note 4) 3,138 5,016
Prepaid expenses 187 238
Accounts receivable 568 987
Cash and short-term investments 8,087 9,482
$ 192,692 $§ 192872
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Mortgages payable (Note 5) $ 67,722 $ 71,822
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,642 5,172
Dividends payable (Note 6) 3.500 1,200
74,864 78,194
Shareholder’s equity
Share capital (Note 7) 98,451 98,451
Retained earnings 19,377 16,227
117.828 114,678
$ 192,692 $ 192,872
Equity per share (Note 7) $ 11.97 $ 11.65

Signed on behalf of the Board: MMM

See arcompanying noies

VYL -Ef?_l-{,v(w’b’é’e/{iy

Chairperson
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2009 2008
(000’s) (000’s)
Imcome
Rents and parking $ 14,360 $ 14,934
Expense recoveries from tenants 6,107 5,326
Adjustment on sale of income producing property 249 -
Investment and other income 24 200
20,740 20,460
Less: Operating expenses (Note 8) 7,622 7.404
Operating incorme 13.118 13.056

Other expenses

Administrative costs 133 236
Amortization of deferred charges 673 864
Asset management fees 575 559
Loss on sale of income producing property - 2,273
Mortgage interest 3,787 4,094
Participation fee (Note 9) - 7
5,168 8,033
Net income for the year 7,950 5,023
Retained earnings, beginning of year 16,227 14,244
Dividends (Note 6) {4,800) (3.040)
Retained earnings, end of year $ 19,377 $ 16,227
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2009 2008
(000°s) (000’s)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income for the year $ 7,950 $ 5023
Items not affecting cash
Amortization of deferred charges 673 864
Loss on sale of income producing property - 2,273
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable 419 (354)
Prepaid expenses 51 (36)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1.530) (1.046)
7.563 6.724
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of income producing properties - (47,043)
Additions to income producing properties (1,831) (5,560)
Capitalization of deferred recoverable expenditures
to income producing properties (Note 4) (1,732) -
Proceeds from disposal of income producing property - 22,488
(3.563) (30.115)
Cash flows from financing activities
Change in deferred charges 1,205 (1,359)
Mortgage advances - 13,050
Mortgage principal repayments (4,100) (12,612)
Dividends (Note 6) (2,500) (3,440)
Issuance of common shares (Note 7) - 39,270
Cancellation of common shares (Note 7) - (9.760)
(5.395) 25.149
Increase (decrease) in cash and short-term investments
during the year (1,395) 1,758
Cash and short-term investments, beginning of vear 9.482 7,724
Cash and short-term investments, end of vear $ 8.087 $ 9,482
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2009

Authority

Newvest Realty Corporation was incorporated on 9 August 2001 under the provisions of the Canada
Business Corporations Act. It is also registered under the Corporations Act of the Province of
Newfoundland and Labrador. The Corporation has its headquarters in Toronto, Ontario. All shares of the
Corporation are held by the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador Pooled Pension Fund (the Fund).
Board members are appointed by the Pension Investment Committee of the Fund. The purpose of the
Corporation is to invest monies received from the Fund in Canadian real estate property.

The Corporation has an Investment Services Agreement with Bentall Limited Partnership dated 30 June
2001, under which Bentall Limited Partnership is responsible for the acquisition, disposal, leasing and
management of real estate properties and performance of all administrative functions on behalf of the
Corporation.

1.  Significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared by the Corporation’s management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Outlined below are the significant accounting
policies followed.

(a) Cash and short-term investments represent unrestricted cash and highly liquid money-market
investments.

(b) Income producing properties held for investment are recorded at cost. Amortization is not
recorded on properties as it is not considered meaningful when the objective of the business is to
acquire, develop and hold property for eventual sale. The Corporation capitalizes all direct costs
relating to the acquisition of all properties. Leasing costs are capitalized and amortized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the respective lease.

(c) The Corporation accounts for its investments in co-ownerships on a proportionate consolidation
basis whereby the Corporation includes its pro-rata share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses of the co-ownerships on a line-by-line basis. (See Note 10).

(d) Rental revenue includes rents from tenants under leases, property tax and operating cost
recoveries, parking income and incidental income. Rental revenue with respect to rents from
tenants under leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(¢) The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires that management make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Management believes
that the estimates utilized in preparing these financial statements are reasonable and prudent;
however, actual results may differ from these estimates.

(f) The Corporation defers and amortizes financing costs over the term of the related mortgages.
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MEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
ROTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS
31 December 2009

2.  Change in accounting policy

In the past, the Corporation’s practice has been to record capital and maintenance costs, recoverable
under tenant leases over specified periods of time, as deferred recoverable expenditures. However,
effective for the 2009 year, as a result of amendments to Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(CICA) Section 1000 (Financial Statement Concepts) and new CICA Section 3064 (Goodwill and
Intangible Assets), these costs no longer qualify as intangible assets and must either be expensed or
capitalized to the properties. During the year, the Corporation reviewed all amounts previously
recorded as deferred recoverable expenditures to determine appropriate treatment. As a result, a
significant portion of the costs were capitalized to the income producing properties, while any
remaining costs were expensed. These changes have been made in accordance with section 1506 of
the CICA Handbook and have not been made retrospectively because it is not practical to do so. See
Note 4 for a more detailed breakdown.

3. Income producing properties

For investment information purposes all properties are presented below at both cost and appraised
values. Appraised values are in accordance with the Corporation’s appraisal policy which requires
that properties be appraised at least once every two years by professionally qualified independent
appraisers. The external appraisals are completed in six month cycles on approximately one quarter of
the Corporation’s portfolio. The properties that are not externally appraised during each six month
cycle are appraised by Bentall Limited Partnership.

2009 2008
Cost Appraised Cost Appraised

or Value Value or Value Value
{000’s) {000°s) (000’s) (000’s)

(a) Bayview Chateau and White Rock Gardens,

White Rock, British Columbia $ 10,242 § 12,650 § 10,111 § 12,800
(b) Sperling Plaza, Burnaby, British Columbia 16,716 22,800 16,151 24,500
(¢) Park and Tilford Shopping Centre, North

Vancouver, British Columbia 44,602 50,600 41,993 50,000
(d) TD Creekside Corporate Centre

(50% interest), Mississauga, Ontario 29,284 31,000 29,284 33,500
(e) 2001 Bantree (50% interest), Ottawa, Ontario 19,421 9,650 10,421 10,350
(f) Thunder Centre (50% interest),

Thunder Bay, Ontario 15,149 14,000 15,109 15,950
(g) Centre 5735, Calgary, Alberta 7,037 6,000 7,037 7,200
(h) 4500 Cousens Road, St. Laurent, Quebec 6,989 5,750 6,687 6,687
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2009

3.

Income producing properties (cont.)

2009 2008
Cost Appraised Cost Appraised
or Value Value or Value Value
(000°s) {006°s) (000’s) (000’s)

(i) 4500 Chemin Bois Franc, St. Laurent,

Quebec 4,533 3,850 4,533 4,533
(5)  Faubourg Bois Franc, St. Laurent, Quebec 15,681 13,450 15,746 15,746
(k) Vintage Park, Calgary, Alberta 20,058 15,600 20,077 20,077

$ 180712 $ 185350 $177.140 § 201,343

Deferred charges

Deferred charges consist of costs incurred, net of accumulated amortization, with respect to obtaining
debt financing, leasing and potential acquisitions. Amortization is recorded on a straight line basis
over the term of the respective credit facility or over the remaining term of the respective leases to
which the costs relate.

2009 2008
Net Net
Accumulated  Carrying Carrying
Cost Amortization Value Value
(606’s) (000°s) (000°s) (000’s)
Tenant inducements and leasing costs $ 4471 $ 2,937 § 1,534 § 1,623
Deferred financing costs 80 52 28 41
Deferred recoverable expenditures - - - 1,741
Straight line rent 1.576 - 1,576 1.611

$ 6127  $ 2980 § 3138 $ 5016

At 31 December 2008, there were $2,158,000 of capitalized deferred recoverable expenditures with a
corresponding accumulated amortization of $417,000 for a net value of $1,741,000. Upon completion
of the analysis of this account, it was determined that $1,732,000 would be capitalized to the income
producing properties in the following manner:

(a) Sperling Plaza $ 485,000
(b) Park and Tilford Shopping Centre $ 1,207,000
(¢) Thunder Center (50% interest) $ 40,000

Accumulated amortization of $417,000 was reversed and $426,000 that had previously been
capitalized as deferred recoverable expenditures was expensed through general repairs and
maintenance in the current year.

- 628 -



NEWVYEST REALTY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2009

5. Mortgages payable

Mortgages payable represent financing obtained by the Corporation for the acquisition of income
producing properties. For investment information purposes, principal values and appreciated values
are shown. Appreciated value is the mortgage’s market value based on the discounted future cash
payments using current or similar market interest rates. Details are as follows:

2009 2008
Principal Appreciated Principal Appreciated
Value Value Value Value
(000°s) (000°s) (000’s) (000°s)

(a) Bayview Chateau and White Rock
Gardens, White Rock, British Columbia.
Mortgage, held by The Great-West Life
Assurance Company, repayable in monthly
installments of $26,705, including interest
calculated at a rate of 5.58% per annum,
maturing 1 July 2012, secured by a
conventional first mortgage, a general
security agreement, and a general
assignment of rents. $ 4,133 $ 4,268 §$ 4223 § 4,297

(b) Park and Tilford Shopping Centre, North
Vancouver, British Columbia. Mortgage,
held by The Great-West Life Assurance
Company, repayable in  monthly
installments of $137,927, including interest
calculated at a rate of 5.88% per annum,
matuﬁng 1 September 2010 18,880 18,879 19,421 19,820

(c) TD  Creekside  Corporate  Centre,
Mississauga Ontario. Mortgage (50%
interest), held by Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company, repayable in monthly
installments of $115,194, including interest
calculated at a rate of 5.71% per annum,
maturing 1 July 2014, secured by a
freehold first mortgage and charge on the
property, a general security agreement, a
first general assignment of rents, and a first
specific assignment of a tenant lease. 16,362 16,688 16,808 17,022
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2009

5. Mortgages payable (cont.)

2009 2008

Principal Appreciated Principal Appreciated
Yalue Value Value Value

(d) 2001 Bantree, Ottawa, Ontario. Mortgage
(50% interest), held by Equitable Life,
repayable in monthly installments of
$38,816, including interest calculated at a
rate of 5.09% per annum, maturing
1 August 2015, secured by a first mortgage
and charge on the property, a first general
assignment of leases and rents, a first
specific assignment of leases, a first general
security agreement of assets of the
property, and assignment of insurance
proceeds and endorsements to all policies.

(e) Thunder Centre, Thunder Bay, Ontario.
Mortgage (50% interest), held by CIBC,
repayable in monthly installments of
$53,718, including interest calculated at a
rate of 5.743% per annum, maturing
1 September 2015, secured by a first
mortgage and charge on the property, a first
general assignment of leases and rents, a
specific assignment of leases, assignment
of the head lease with the vendor, and
assignment of the letter of credit relative to
the head lease.

(f) Centre 5735, Calgary, Alberta. Mortgage,
held by Equitable Life, repayable in
monthly installments of $26,630, including
interest calculated at a rate of 5.28% per
annum, maturing 1 December 2016,
secured by a first mortgage and charge on
the property, and a general security
agreement.
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5,975 5,884 6,135 5,970
7,844 7,950 8,037 8,037
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2009

5.  Mortgages payable (comnt.)

2009 2008

Principal Appreciated Principal Appreciated
Value Value Value Value

(g) 4500 Chemin Bois Franc, St. Laurent,
Quebec. Mortgage, held by TD Canada
Trust, repayable in full on 26 January 2009
at an amount of $2,401,000, including
interest calculated at a rate of 5.40% per
annum.

(h) Faubourg Bois Franc, St. Laurent, Quebec.
Mortgage, held by CIBC Mortgages Inc.,
repayable in monthly installments of
$57,238, including interest calculated at a
rate of 5.00% per annum, maturing |
September 2017, secured by a first
hypothec for registration against title to the
properties in the amount of $10,725,000, a
general immovable hypothec of rents being
a first priority interest in rents payable and
the insurance indemmities on such rents, a
movable hypothec of the lease(s), and a
movable hypothec in the amount of
$10,725,000 being a first priority interest in
all present and future personal or movable
property corporeal or incorporeal of the
Borrower.

(000’sy  (000°s) (000’sy  (000’s)

] . 2,401 2,401

10,354 9,899 10,524 10,524

$ 67,722 $ 67,673 $71,822 §72,213

Annual principal repayments totalling $43.0 million (2008 - $32.0 million) to be made during the next

five years are as follows:

(000°s)

2010 $ 20,101
2011 1,290
2012 5,193
2013 1,325
2014 15,117
$ 43.026
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2009

6. Dividends payable

Dividends are payable on a resolution of the Board to the holder of common shares on a quarterly
basis based on the net income for the quarter ended, less reasonable reserves as determined by Bentall
Limited Partnership, divided by the number of issued and outstanding common shares.

2009 2008
{000°s) (000’s)
Dividends payable, beginning of year $ 1,200 $ 1,600
Dividends declared 4,800 3,040
Dividends paid (2,500) (3.440)
Dividends pavable, end of year $ 3.500 $ 1.200

7. | Share capital

The authorized capital of the Corporation consists of an unlimited number of common shares without
par value. The shares may be issued only to the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador Pooled
Pension Fund. The sale, transfer or other disposition of common shares is restricted.

Changes in share capital are as follows:

2009 2008
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
(000’s) (000’s)

Issued and outstanding,
beginning of year 9,845,100 $ 98451 6,894,100 $ 68941
Issued during the year for cash - - 3,927,000 39,270
Cancelled during the year for cash - - (976,000) (9.760)
Issued and outstanding, end of year 9,845,100 $ 98451 9,845,100 $ 98451

Equity per share is calculated as net asset value divided by the number of shares issued and
outstanding at year end. At 31 December 2009, equity per share was $11.97 (2008 - $11.65).
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2009

8. Operating expenses

Operating expenses consist of:

2009 2008

(000°s) (000’s)

Elevator, HVAC and plumbing $ 278 $ 305
Exterior grounds 538 613
General administrative 387 356
Insurance 158 192
Janitorial 320 341
Management fees 572 590
Miscellaneous 36 109
Non-recoverable property expenses 592 236
Parking lot 321 201
Property taxes 3,464 3,172
Repairs and maintenance 231 142
Securty 112 170
Utilities 613 977
$ 7.622 $ 7.404

9. Participation fee

Section 1.4 of Schedule 3 to the Investment Services Agreement with Bentall Limited Partnership
dated 30 June 2001 provides for the payment of a participation fee to Bentall Limited Partnership by
the Corporation. This participation fee shall be calculated and paid semi-annually on the fiscal year
end of the Corporation and on that date which is six months thereafter. The calculation of the
participation fee is based on the Corporation’s performance as it relates to preset hurdle rates. A
participation fee of $0 (2008 - $6,968) has been calculated for 2009. The calculation of this fee is
based mainly on the changes in market values of the income producing properties.
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NEWVEST REALTY CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2009

19.

i1.

12.

13.

Co-ownerships

The following amounts represent the Corporation’s proportionate interest in unincorporated co-
ownerships. These are included in the amounts presented on the balance sheet and the statement of
income and retained earnings. ‘

2009 2008
(000°) (000°s)

Assets $ 56,692 $ 55,607
Liabilities 30,398 31,467
Income 5,406 5,735
Operating expenses 1,466 1,662
Mortgage interest 1,702 1.728

Related party transactions

During the year, charges of $1,314,394 (2008 - $1,371,228) were incurred for services from Bentall
Limited Partnership, a related party. These amounts are incurred in the normal course of business and
are measured at the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

These amounts are charged in these financial statements to income producing properties, operating
expenses, asset management fees and participation fee.

Financial instruments

The Corporation’s financial instruments recognized on the balance sheet consist of cash and short-term
investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, mortgages payable and
dividends payable. The carrying values of these instruments approximate current fair value due to
their nature and the terms and conditions associated with them. Interest rates on the mortgages
payable are fixed to maturity. Therefore, the carrying values of these long-term financial instruments
approximate their fair value and these instruments are not subject to any material interest rate risk.

Income taxes

The Corporation is a Crown entity of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and as such is not
subject to Provincial or Federal income taxes.
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YW Walrers Hoffe

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of the Nova Central School District

We have audited the balance sheet of the current and capital funds of the Nova Central School
District as at June 30, 2009, and the related statements of current revenues, expenditures and Board
deficiency, and statement of changes in capital fund position for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Board’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audif to oblain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Board as at June 30, 2009, and the results of its operations and the changes in its capital
financial position for the year then ended in accordance with the basis of accounting and as explained
in Note 1 to the financial statements, which Is in compliance with reporting requirements established
for school boards in the Province of Newfoundiand and Labrador by the Department of Education.

As required by Section 66(2) of the Schools Act, 1997, we report that ail employees collecting, receiving
and depositing cash are adequately bonded.

These financial statements, which have not been, were notintended to be, prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, are intended for the information and use of the

Board and the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and may not be appropriate for any other
purpose.

Walle~s Hefhe

Chartered Accountants
Gander, Newfoundland

Qctober 30, 2009
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Nova Gentral School District
Balance Sheet

Year ended June 30 2009 2008
Assets
Current Assets
Cash (Supp. Info 1) 5,540,847 $ 3,557,619
Accounis Receivable (Note 2) 12,917,811 12,739,626
inventory, at cost - 5,723
Prepaid Expenses (Supp. Info 3) 432,517 339,388
Tatal Current Assels 18,891,175 16,642,356
Restricted Cash - Scholarship Coniributions 666,134 659,192
Property and Equipment (Sch. 8} 186,026,712 183,131,606
$ 208,584,021 $ 200,433,154
Liabilities and Board Equity
Current Liabilities
Bank indebledness (Nole 3) - $ -
Accounts Payable and Accruals (Note 4) 16,581,656 14,943,753
Current Maturities (Sch. 9B) 4,220,741 1,226,743
Total Current Liabilities 17,802,397 16,170,496
Scholarship Contributions 666,134 659,192
tong Term Debi (Sch. 9) 6,408,491 7,629,657
Accrued Suppor Staff Severance 2,946,438 2,851,757
Accrued Teachar Severance 18,183,084 17,531,326
Board Equity
invesiment in Capital Assets {Note 8) 178,397,486 174,275,313
Board Deficiency {Nole 8) {18,820,009) (18,684,487)
Total Board Equity 159,577,477 155,500,826
Commitments (Note 7}
$ 205,584,021 $ 200,433,154

Approved.

See accompanying notes.
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Nova Central School District
Statement of Current Revenues, Expenditures and
Board Deficiency

Year Ended June 30 2009 2008
Current Revenues (Schedule 1)
Local Taxation
Provincial Government Grants $ 129,262,585 $ 121,082,920
Donations
Ancillary Services 36,000 40,820
Miscellaneous 2,887,697 1,147,928
$ 132,286,282 $ 122,271,768
Current Expenditures
Administration {Schedule 2) $ 3,921,632 $ 3,319,980
Instruction (Schedule 3) 101,094,626 94,584,630
Operations and Maintenance (Schedule 4) 16,675,335 13,656,450
Pupil Transportation (Schedule 5) 44,118,010 10,703,414
Ancillary Services (Schedule 6) 39,917 37,450
Interest Expense (Schedule 9C) 1,327 8,933
Miscellaneous Expanses (Schedule 7) - -
131,770,046 122,310,857
23 111
Excass (Deficiency) of Revenue over Expenditure
Before Teacher Severance, Summer Pay $ 516,236 $ {39,089)
and Transfer to Capital
Teacher Severance {851,758) (190,731)
Teacher Summer Pay - -
Transfer to Capital -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Board Equity § {138,522) $ (229,820)
Board Deficil, beginning of period {18,684,487) (18,454,667)
Board Deficit, end of period $ (18,820,009) $ (18,684,487)
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Nova Central School District
Statement of Changes in Capital Fund

Year ended June 30 2009 2008

70 Capital Receipt

71 Proceeds from Bank Loans
011 School Construction $ - 3 -
012 Equipment
013 Setvice Vehicles 11,694
014 Pupil Transportation -
015 Other - Energy Performance Contracting

72 Department of Education Grants

011 School Construction and Equipment 4,293,110 6,519,914
012 Other 275,414
73 Donations

011 Cash Receipls . -
012 Non-Cash Receipts - -
013 Restricted Use - .

74 Sale of Capital Assets Proceeds
011 iand
012 Buildings
013 Equiprnent 500
D14 Servica Vehicles 1,161
015 Pupil Transportation Vehicles 2,428
016 Other

75 Other Capital Revenues
011 Interest on Capital Fund invesiments
012 Premiums on Debentures
013 Recoveries of Expenditures 63,462 290,329
015 insurance Proceeds
017 Miscellaneous-Energy Grant 52,232

Total Capital Receipts
77 Transfer from Reserve Account
78 Transfer to/from Current Fund

$ 4,402,380 $ 7,097,851
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Nova Central School District
Statement of Changes in Capital Fund (cont'd)

Year ended June 30 2009 2008

80 Capital Disbursements

81 Additions to Property and Equipment

011 Land and Sites § 237,019 $ 15,564
012 Buildings 3,329,807 6,127,506
013 Furniture and Equipment - School 622,234 431,695
014 Furniture and Equipment - Other 247,150 27,807
015 Services Vehicles 30,843 14,694
016 Pupil Transportation 275,414
017 Other

82 Principal Repayment of Loans
011 School Construction - 191,815
012 Equipmeni
0132 Services Vehicles 15,327 16,356
014 Other

83 Miscellaneous Disbursements
013 Other

Total Capital Disbursements $ 4,402,380 $ 7,097,851
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Nova Central School District
Notes fo the Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial siatements have been prapared on a fund accounling basis which is generally accepted for
Schoo! Boards. Fund accounting can be deflned as "accounting procedures in which a self-balancing group of accounts is
provided for each fund.” It is customary for School Boards to account separately for the current and capital funds.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the Board, relating to their use of fund accounting, is as follows:

a) Grants received by the Board from the Department of Education are recorded in either the current or capital funds
gdepending on the project.

b) Land, buildings and equipment are racorded in the accounts based on estimated values at January 1, 1987. Additions
since that date are recorded at full cost in the capilal fund.

¢} The Board doss not calculate or record depreciation on any of its fixed assets.
d) Ali capital expendilures financed out of current revenue funds are recorded as an expenditure in the current account,

e) Principal Repayment of Pupil Transporiation Loans are recorded as Current Expendilures, All other prinicipal
repayment of bank loans are recorded as Capital Expenditures.

Severance Pay

The Board has in effect severance pay policies whareby employees are entitled lo a severance payment upon lgaving
employment wilh the Board. Under these policies, a permanent employee who has nine (9) or more years of continuous
service in the employ of the School Board is entitled to be paid on resignalion, refirement, termination by reasons of
dlsability, expiry of recall righs, of in the event of dealh, 1o the employee's eslate, severance pay equal to the amount
obtalned by multiplying the number of completed years of continugus employment by his weekly salary to a maximum of
twenty (20) weeks pay. This liability for severance pay has been accrued in the accounts for all employees who have a
vesied right to receive such paymenis.

Severance pay for teachers is paid through the Department of Education. An amount of $1,451,739 has been
paid during the 2008-09 fiscal period and is included in employee benefils for teachers.
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Nova Central School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

2. Accounts Recelvable

11

11

131

132
133

136
137
138
139

231
233
234
235

Current

Provincial Government
Grant
Transporiation
Federal Governmeni
School Taxes
Other School Boards
Rent
Interest
Travel Advances, Schools and Misc.

Capital

Department of Education-Capilal Grants
Local Contribulions

Other School Boards

Other

Less: Allowance for uncollectible
Government grants

2009

$ 41,767,312

327,773

155,030

667,596

12,917,811

Sz

3.

21

Bank Indebtedness - Current

131 On Operaling Credit
132 On Current Account
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Nova Centrai School District
Notes to the Financia! Statements

June 30, 2009

4. Accounts Payéble and Accruals
Cusrent

21 111 Trade Payables
112 Accrued - Liabilities
13 - Interest
114 - Wages
115 Payroll Deductions
116 Retail Sales Tax
117 Deferved Grants
119 Summer Pay - Teacher
122 Department of Educalion

Gapital

21 211 Trade Payables
212 Accrued - Liabililles

213 - Inlerest
217 Deferred Granis
218 Other

$

$

2009

942,583
363,879

4,183,801
72,024

768,566

11,233,904
708,181

1,320,729

16,581,658

6. Rasorve Account - Caplital
Description:
Baiance, beginning of period

Less: Transfer to Capital Fund

Add: Transfer from Board Equily

Balance, end of period
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Nova Central School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

8A. Reserve Account - Current
Description:
Balance, beginning of period

tess: Cumrent Expenditures

Add: Transfer from Board Equity

Balance, end of period
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Nova Central School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

6. investment in Capital Assets
Balance, June 30, 2008

Transfer of Operating Funds to Capital Fund

2009

$ 474,278,313

Grants - Department of Education-Capital Projects 4,293,110
- Olher - 4,293,110
Proceeds from Sale of Capltal Assets- Equipment 3,676
Federal Government Enargy Grant 52,232
Recoveries of Expendilures 53,463
178,677,684
Deduct Adjustmenis.
Cost of Assets Sold -Land 62,494
- Buildings 1,036,400
- School Buses 375,308
- Service Vehicles-Mice, 17,744
- Service Vehicles-Bussing - 1,491,948
177,185,748
Add Adjustments:
Other - Pupll transportation foan payments
made by current fund 1,026,309
Energy Performance loan payments
mads by current fund 185,431 1,211,740

23 221 Invesimant In Capital Assets, end of period

$ 178,397,486
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Nova Central School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

7. Commitments
At the Balance Sheet date, the District had lhe following commitmenis:

The District has enlered into lease agreements wih estimated fulure payments for the next five years as foliows:

2010-$199,235
2011-$159,520
2012-$49,393
2013-$1,222
2014-$873

8. Board Deflcioncy

Opening Board Deficiency, June 30, 2008 {18,684,487)
Nat increase{decrease) in Board Equity (Page 4) {136,522)
Board Deficiency, June 30, 2009 5 18,820,009)
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Nova Central School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2009

9. Department of Education Receivables and Payables

As at June 30, 2008 the Board has recorded the following receivables from the Province of Newfoundland & Labrador -
Department of Education,

Accounts Recelvable - Current

Amounts due re: Teacher Summer Pay $ 11,233,904
Amounts due re: School Operations 405,012
Amounts due re: Insurance - Point Leamington 62,312
Amounts due re: Miscellaneous 66,084

§ 11,787,312

Accounts Receivable - Capitai

Amounts due re: Special Incentives $ 362,800
Amounts due re; School Construction 306,096
$ 667,698

Accounts Payable

Amounts due re: Other $ 708,181
Amounts due re: Teachers Payroll -
$ 708,184

- 647 -



Schedule 1

Nova Central School District
Current Revenues
Year Ended June 30 2009 2008
Current Revenues
31 010 Local Taxation
011 School Taxes
32 010 Provincial Government Grants
011 Regutar Operating Grants 21,744,440 20,613,377
012 Special Grants (Details on bottom of
Schedule 1} 671,047 550,433
013  Payroll Tax 1,609,838 1,499,188
Salaries and Benefits
017 Directors and Assistant Direclors 1,149,738 753,113
021 Regular Teachers 87,239,895 82,082,182
021 Student Assistants 2,602,164 2,161,634
022 Substitute Teachers 3,663,960 3,081,577
030 Pupil Transportation
031 Board Owned 9,167,653 8,866,629
032 Contracted 4,128,353 1,112,058
033 Special Needs 485,496 362,729
129,262,685 121,082,920
33 010 Donations
012  Cash Receipts - -
013  Non Cash Receipis - -
014 Restricted Use - -
34 010 Ancillary Services
011 Revenue from Rental of Residences -
015 interest on Schools -
021 Revenues from Rental of Schools and
Facilities (Net) - 920
022 Internally Generated Funds - Snow Clearing
and Other Incentives 36,000 40,000
031 Cafeterias -
032 Other -
36,000 40,920
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Nova Central School District Schedule 1 {cont'd)
Current Revenues

Year Ended June 30 2009 2008

Current Revenues

35 010 Miscellaneous

011  Interest on investments . 94,8086 165,911
012 Bus Charters 329,166 272,349
021  Recoveries of Expenditures 2,467,895 594,626
051 Insurance Proceads - 1,630
081 Miscellaneous Federal Grant 45,938 83,310
091 Textbooks - -
092  Sundry 49,902 30,102
2,987,697 1,147,928

36 011 Transfer from Capital
Total Current Revenues $ 132,286,282 $ 122,271,788
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Nova Central Schoo! District
Current Revenues

Schedule 1 {cont'd)

Year Ended June 30 2009 2008
Special Grants

French Monitor 42,497 $ 53,188
French lmmersion - - 6,462
French Teacher Aide 43,038 39,310
French Supplemeantary Materials - 52,881
CFT Teacher TP - French 16,058 -
CFT Administration TP - French 2,910 7,787
French - Teaching Math - 1,357
French -~ ICF Resources 5,445 13,703
French - ICF Follow up 486 2,703
St. Pierre Trips 49,577 45712
French - Recruitment and Training 4,874 -
French Camps 77,714 36,058
inclusive Education - 3,000
NLTA Leadership . 1,000
Kinderstart 2,767 18,500
TutoringMVork Experience 37,336 29,133
TutoringMWork Experience - COLI| 33,264 17,499
MUN Action Research - 1,740
Ccbul v 86,117 64,993
Fine Arls - 11,266
Positive Bahaviours 34,205 -
Cultural Connections - PD $0,000 -
Early Childhood 1,586 4,742
Teacher Induction 1,500 2,000
Math Initiatives 33,199 29,653
Math Leadership 16,803 3,197
Math Research 241,234 8,766
Read With Me - 2,627
Art Works Conference ~ 73,952
Nurmeracy Suppori 30,180 19,204
Provincial Drama Festival 46,100 -
Healthy Schools 31,196
Training Initiatives-Special Education 21,370
Misceltaneous 2,602 -

$ 871,047 $ 550,433
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Nova Central School District Schedule 2

Administration Expenditures

Year Ended June 30 2009 2008

51 011 Salaries and Benefits - Director

and Assistant Directors 1,149,738 $ 753,113
012 Salaries and Benefits - Board
Office Personnel 1,705,616 1,467,181

013 Office Supplies 84,875 65,494
014 Replacement Furniture and Equipment 68,386 47,145
015 Postage 43,990 37,782
016 Telephone 114,268 102,573
017 OQffice Equipment Rentals and Repairs 32,429 40,856
018 Bank Charges ‘ 446 . 427
019 Electricity 134,881 111,421
021 Fuel 3,426 43,260
022 Insurance 4,848 4,376
023 Repairs and Maintenance (Office Building) 68,849 54,107
024 Travel 142,168 110,076
025 Board Meeting Expenses 60,814 79,840
026 Election Expenses - -
027 Professional Fees 104,918 181,062
028 Advertising 58,563 61,664
029 Membership Dues 67,498 75,052
031 Municipal Taxes 38,839 31,549
034 Miscellaneous 41,424 30,978
035 Payroli Tax 26,356 22,056

Total Administration Expenditures 3,821,832 $ 3,319,980
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Nova Central Schoo! District Schedule 3
Instruction Expenditures
Year Ended June 30 2009 2008
52 010 Instructional Salaries (Gross)
011 Teachers' Salaries - Regular 73,333,924 69,340,958
012 - Substituie 3,447,732 3,090,617
013 - Board Paid - 2,364
013 - Student Assistants 2,451,817 2,134,048
014 Augmentation
015 Employee Benefits 13,806,971 12,741,224 .
016 School Secretaries - Salaries and Benefits 2,377,790 1,928,472
017 Payroli Tax 1,848,602 1,534,462
018 IMC Salary 24,672 32,347
97,190,308 90,804,492
52 040 instructional Materials
041 General Supplies 788,431 728,362
042 Library Resource Materials 92,021 75,782
043  Teaching Aids 553,318 827,126
044  Curriculum Initiatives - -
1,430,770 1,631,269
52 060 Instructional Furniture and Equipment
061 Replacement 803,387 543,275
062 Rentals and Repairs 246,895 242 164
1,050,282 785,430
52 080 Instructional Staff Travel
081 Program Co-ordinators 78,894 57,511
082 Teachers' Travel 275,403 251,669
083 Inservice and Conferences 224,068 305,004
579,366 614,174
090 Other instructional Costs
52 091 Postage and Staticnary
092 Miscellaneous 763,699 749,256
763,899 749,256
104,014,625 94,584,630
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Nova Central School District Scheduie 4
Operations and Maintenance Expenditures - Schools

Year Ended June 30 2008 2008

53 011 Salaries and Benefils - Janitorial 3,783,446 $ 3,356,043
012 Salaries and Benefits - Maintenance 2,122,994 1,818,360
013 Payroll Tax 123,374 73,429
014 Eleciricity 3,337,778 3,266,609
015 Fuel 618,210 891,733
016 Municipal Service Fees 241,568 240,213
017 Télephone ‘ 366,880 383,229
018 Vehicle Operating and Travel 185,276 171,240
019 Janitorial Supplies 308,010 293,008
021 Janitorial Equipment 08,873 52,461
022 Repairs and Maintenance - Building 2,129,050 4,317,275
023 < Equipment 44,183 7,604
024 Goniracted Services - Janitorial 247,909 224,049
025 Snow Clearing 599,277 724,303
027 Other 1,510,808 836,904

Total Operations and Maintenance Expenditures 15,675,335 $ 13,656,450
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Nova Central School District Schedule 5
Pupil Transportation Expenditures
Year Ended June 30 2009 2008
54 010 Operation and Maintenance of Board Owned
Flest
011  Salaries and Benefits - Administration 213,002 $ 189,725
012  Salaries and Benefits -
Drivers and Mechanics 5,581,346 4,976,651
013  Payroll Tax 87,957 73,732
014 Debt Repayment - Interest 189,072 393,748
015 - Principal 1,026,309 1,034,179
016  Bank Charges - -
017 Gas and Qil 1,065,116 1,302,506
018 Licences 109,033 109,780
019  Insurance 106,378 148,113
021  Repairs and Maintenance - Fleet 571,465 529,084
022 - Building 61,385 91,868 -
023  Tires and Tubes 81,206 82,054
024  Heat and Light 71,439 88,759
025  Municipal Services 7,881 8,865
026  Snow Clearing 35,200 44,226
027  Office Supplies 24,564 16,127
029 Travel 16,114 15,911
031 Professional Fees 7,600 6,637
032 Miscellaneous 185,863 62,964
033 Telephone 55,845 53,698
$ 9,494,161 3 9,228,627
54 040 Contracied Services
041 Regular Transportation 1,128,353 $ 1,112,058
042  Handicapped 495,496 $ 362,728
1,623,849 1,474,787
Total Pupil Transportation Expenditures $ 44,118,016 $ 10,703,414
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Nova Central School District
Ancillary Services and Miscellaneous Expenses

Year Ended June 30 2009 2008
Ancillary Services Schedule 8
55 Ancillary Services
011 Operations of Teachers' Residence $ - $ -
013 Janitorial
031 Cafeterias 39,117 37,450
032 Other
$ 39,117 $ 37,450
Miscellaneous Expenses Scheduie 7
The Board has incurred the foliowing miscellanecus expenses:
57 001 Miscellaneous
$ - $ -
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Nova Central School District

Detaiis of Property and Equipment Schedule 8
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Adjustment/
Balance Transfer Additions Disposais Bailance
June 30, 2008  Current Year 2009 2009 June 30, 2009
Land and Sites
12 210 Land and Sites
211 Land and Sites 2,493,380 287,019 62,494 2,717,908
12 212 Land Improvements 2,493,380 - 287,019 62,494 2,717,905
12 220 Buildings
221 Schools 138,530,068 - 3,121,434 1,036,400 140,615,102
222 Administration 4,500,145 208,373 - 4,708,618
223  Residential -
224  Recreation -
225  Other - Maintenance 136,323 136,323
143,166,536 - 3,329,807 1,036,400 146,469,843
12 230 Furniture & Equipment
231  Schools 19,737,520 522,234 - 20,259,764
232 Administration 1,806,689 - 247,450 2,023,839
233  Residential .
234  Recreation -
235  Other - Maintenance 14,728 14,728
24,558,937 - 739,384 - 22,298,321
12 240 Vehicles
241  Service Vebicles 262,710 - 17,744 244,966
12 250 Pupil Transportation
251 Land 60,817 60,817
252  Building 853,699 - 853,699
253  Vahicles - Buses 14,468,642 - N 376,309 44,093,333
254 - Service 197,045 - 30,843 - 227,888
255  Equipment 69,840 - 69,840
256  Other ~ -
15,650,043 - 30,843 375,308 15,306,577
12 260 Miscellangous Capilal Assets
261  Other -
Total Property & Equipment $183,131,606 § - $ 4,387,063  $1,491,847 186,026,712

Land, buildings and equipment have been recorded in the accounts af estimaled valuss at January 1, 1997. Additions since
that date have been recorded at cost. Lands and sites on which some of the buildings are erected are vested in the former
school boards or denominational education counclls or churches. All real and personal property used for the purpose of
education by Nova Central School District will be subject to the terms and conditions contained in Seclion 84 of the 1997

Schools Act.
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Nova Central School District
Details of Long Term Debt Schedule 9

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Bank loans, morigages and debentures, approved by the
Board and the Government of Newfoundiand and Labrador

22 210 Loans Cther Than Pupit Transportation

Ref#

211 Bank Loans
—...Repayable § 15,452 monthly, maturing_ 2015 3 869,668
___Repayable§___  monthily, maturing -
____Repayable § monthly, maturing
__Repayable § monthly, maturing
____Repayable § monthly, maturing

Total 211 $ 969,668

212 Morlgages

____Repayable § monthly, maturing
___ Repayable § monthly, maturing
____Repayable $_____ monthly, maturing
Total 212
213 Vehicles
___Repayable § 555.10 monthly, maturing 2009 14,424
—_Repayable $ 550.43 monthly, maturing 2010 2,672
Totat 213 16,796
Subtotal 986,464
216 Less: Current Malurities 194,431
Total Loans Other Than Pupil Transporiation $ 792,033
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Nova Central School District
Details of Long Term Debt

Year Ended Jung 30, 2009

Scheduie 8 (cont'd

##
22 220 Loans - Pupil Transporiation

Ref.#

221 Vehicle Bank Loans

Prime-1% Repayable $2,677 monthly, maturing 2011
Prime-1% Repayable $1,537 monthly, maturing 2011
Prime-1% Repayable $3,648 monthly, maturing 2012
Prime-1% Repayable $6,277 monthly, maturing 2013
Prime-1% Repayable $1,125 monthly, maturing 2014
Prime-1% Repayable $2,914 monthly, maturing 2015
Prime-1% Repayable $3,794 monthly, maturing 2016
Prime-1% Repayable $1,549 monthly, maturing 2011
Prime-1% Repayable $2,083 monthly, maturing 2011
Prime-1% Repayable $5,211 monthly, maturing 2011
Prime-1% Repayable $2,090 monthly, maturing 2013
Prime-1% Repayable $2,738 monthly, maturing 2014
Prime-1% Repayabie $2,793 monthly, maturing 2015
Prime-1% Repayable $1,084 monthly, maturing 2018
Prime-1% Repayable $ 21,563 monthly, maturing 2017
Prime-1% Repayable $ 24,443 monthly, maiuring 2019

Subtotal
223 Less: Current Maturilies
Total Loans - Pupil Transportation

Total Long Term Dabt
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$ 56,218
43,042
127,669
307,677
73,439
201,158
333,877
24,777
47,917
119,852
100,333
164,262
192,738
94,311
2,091,617
2,664,201

6,642,768

1,026,310 .

5,816,458

6,408,491




Nova Central School District

Summary of Long Term Debt ‘Schedule 9A
June 30, 2009
Loans
Balance Obtained Principal Balance
June 30 During Repayment June 30
es¢ription Ref.# Rate 2008 Period for Perlad 2009
A) 1. School
Construction Prime - 1%
2. Rastructuring  Prime - 1% $ - $ . $ -
B) Equipment
€) Service .
Vehicle 32,123 - 16,327 46,796
D) Other - Energy Prime - 1% -
Performance Contracting 1,155,009 185,431 969,668
E) Pupil
Transportation Prime - 1% 7,669,078 - 1,026,310 6,642,768
Total Loans $ 8856300 $ - $ 1,227,088 § 7,629,232
tess: Current Maturities 1,226,743 1,220,741
Total Loans $ 7,629,557 $ - $ 1,227,068 $ 6,408,491
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Nova Central School District

Schedule of Current Maturities

June 30, 2009

Schedule 98

Description

A) School Construction

B} Equipment

C) Service Vehicles

D) Other

£) Pupll Transporiation

Total

201 2041 2012 2013 2014
185,431 188,431 185,431 185,431 185,431
9,000 6,800 4,300 0 0
1,026,310 869,629 825,852 826,852 826,852
'$1,220,74% $1,081,560 $ 1,012,683 § 1,011,283 $1,011,283
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MNova Central School District
Schedule of Interest Expenses

Schedule 9C

Year Ended June 30 2009
Description
012 Capital
School Construction
Restructuring 5,058
Equipment
Service Vehicles 1,169 1,882
Other
Pupi! Transportation
Total Capital 1,168 6,940
013 Current - Operating Loans - -
- Supplier Interes{ Charges 158 1,993
Total Current 158 1,993
Total Interest Expensea 1,327 $ 8,933
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Nova Central School District
Supplementary information

Year Ended June 30

2009

2008

1. Cash

Current

11 110 Cash on Hand and in Bank
111 Cash on Hand
112  Bank - Current
114 - Teachers' Payroll
115 - Support Staff Payroll
- Trust Account

Capital

11 210 Cash on Hand and in Bank
211 CashonHand
212  Bank - Current
213 - Savings
214 - Other

Tolal Cash on Hand and in Bank
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